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Founded in 1995, the Centre for Strategic
Research and Development of Georgia is a civil
society organization with 19 years of successful
work experience in the civil sector. The organi-
zation’s legal status is Foundation.

Our activity area is the country of Georgia.
Centre's head office is in Thbilisi and a branch
office in Telavi.

Our main financing sources are grants re-
ceived from international foundations and de-
velopment agencies, while a small share of our
budget comes from services (such as training
and consultations) provided by our organiza-
tion. (More details are presented in Financial
Report, see Annex 5).

OUR MISSION

The Centre for Strategic Research and Devel-
opment of Georgia seeks to promote the devel-
opment of civil society in Georgia by raising the
awareness of the population, stimulating the
active involvement of citizens in decision mak-
ing processes, advocating the interests of vari-
ous civic groups, supporting civic initiatives,
and conducting applicable practical research.
The Centre endeavours to support groups and
individuals that promote social, political and
economic reforms, and contribute to the devel-
opment of efficient institutions for the protec-
tion of human rights.

In short: the mission of the organization is to
build up civil society in Georgia by promoting
mutual dialogue between the Government and
citizens.

THE MAIN
ACTIVITIES

SPHERES OF OUR

To fulfil its mission, the Centre has three
long-term strategic objectives in relation to the
country’s population, Government and private
sector:
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« CSRDG actively works with the public for
awareness raising, promoting the involve-
ment of stakeholders in decision-making
processes, and helping the public to protect
their interests.

o In relation to the Government, CSRDG’s ob-
jective is to promote effective designing and
implementation of structural reforms by the
Government, with the active participation of
the population.

o In relation to the private sector, CSRDG pro-
motes the active involvement of the business
in achieving sustainable development objec-
tives by introducing the concept and prac-
tice of responsible business and developing
multi-sector partnerships.

In our opinion, all three objectives are
strongly interrelated and their conglomeration
makes a serious contribution to the country’s
sustainable development, raising the quality of
life and building democracy.

The main spheres of the Centre’s activities
under the strategic objectives are:

o Civic development;

« Community / rural development;

« Economy and social policy;

» Environment protection;

o Government decentralization;

o Increasing the municipalities’ accountability
and effectiveness;

 Budgetary processes;

« Consumer rights;

o Social enterprise;

 Corporate Social Responsibility.

For working in the above listed areas we ap-
ply various approaches and strategies, such as:

o Research in various areas related to CSRDG’s
activities (carried out by CSRDG’s experts,
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as well as with the assistance of the experts’
network formed at the Centre)

 Campaigns for awareness raising and advo-
cacy

» Monitoring of Government activities on
both the national and local levels

« Revealing legislative shortcomings and de-
velopment of respective legislative amend-
ments

 Expert assistance (training and consultations
for civil organizations, civic groups, local
governments and self-governments, public
schools, and business companies)

« Strengthening of civil organizations (for civil
organizations in Tbilisi and other regions of
Georgia, and rural youth initiative groups)

« Provision of micro-grants for village initia-
tive groups in order to solve local problems
and to ensure sustainable development of
civic organizations interested in social entre-
preneurship;

o Promotion of partner and coalition work
within the civil sector, as well as on the inter-
sector level.

GEOGRAPHIC COVERAGE OF OUR
ACTIVITIES

CSRDG has a complex approach to solving
problems facing the country, and carries out its
activities on the local (village, district) as well
as the national level. In particular, our activity
area covers Tbilisi - the capital of Georgia; La-
godekhi, Sighnaghi, Telavi, Kvareli and Sagare-
jo municipalities in Eastern Georgia; and Ozur-
geti, Chokhatauri, Abasha, Martvili, Senaki
and Khobi municipalities in Western Georgia.
The Centre has been intensively working in
these municipalities for many years, while some
of these programs are implemented by it on the
whole territory of the country.



T

bsdn 863 x23993980:

s@anenmdMmng @mby bg:

o Logmalb  bLomgdm mEasbadszngdo o
Lonbazno@03m RaNRI0;

o Mg9a0mbmmo bLodmasmgdmngn mMasbode-
(309%0;

o LogoMm Lymemgdo;

*  5©300mMdMN30 M300335MMggmdgdo (3¢-
bo(3035m08) 98 960).

965m36c mby 8y:

o Lobgmobyxnmgdm LEONYIGNHIdn s Lab-
9e880gm 9Bygdgde;

*  33m930m0 ©d J3smmgbo Logsbdsbomemyg-
demm 0bbG oG @go0;

o Logomm Lymmgdo;

o LoDmgomgdfngo mEasbads(3ngdo;

e 3dbbgomon s badygsmm dabbgl 3m33sbogdo;

o Lbgoobbgs bgggmmb g4b3gM@gdo;

o 35b-3g00b badysmgdgda.

2013 69220 - BOIBGI3N RS BNV I3N

®56533@m3mgda: 2013 Bemals obob&mmb
m3560bo300L  @86533OM3gmms  LagMom
omEgbmds oym 24 (5ggsb 22 mdoeobob
mxzobol msbsddMmBgmos s 2 - ;gmosgol
mggabob).

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

™S 1

Our target groups:

On the local level:

 Grassroots organizations (CBO and village
initiative groups)

« Non-governmental organizations

« Public Schools

» Local governments (Municipalities).

On the national level:

« Government and State agencies

Research institutions and collages/universi-
ties

Public schools

Non-governmental organizations

Large and medium business companies
Experts in various spheres

o The Media.

2013 - FACTS AND FIGURES

Employees: At the end of 2013, the total
number of the organization’s employees was 24
(of these, 22 were employees of the Tbilisi office
and 2 of the Telavi office).

doMomsn gabsbban 3shzgbgdmagda mamgdda
Core financial indicators in CEL

2010
2011
2012

1 386 585
812 557
1031 187.2
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Breakdown of the sources of incom by major categories

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
0bngoysma@n, d9dmdbomggmgdo- 3000 13316 15304 1500 813
basb domgdmmo Mobbgdo
From individual contributions
a36gmo byM30L5d0ba 86 Jomgdmmo 88034 128864 128706 62807,58 95788
dgdmbagomo
Income from services provided
Mbm@gd0bash Jomgdymo cmsbbgda 1088742 1244405 668550 965556,14 916 080

Funding from donnors

Our donors: In 2013 our donors were:
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&ommo 3dsmmgzgmmds bodstmzgmmda’;

3930l gobgnmamgdal gn@bamal gmboo.

£3960 bsgdns6m3s (domnorswn Msmmyg-
b6m3mngz0 dsb39698cm9380):
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dnboz035mo@g@dn (mgmsgol, Lombaomal,
yzommal, LogoMgxmbs ©s mogmmgbol
3nbo3030m0@9Bgddn — omdmbegmgom
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Y39 Mganmbao;
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s 14 bg®gab-3mbEMmo9EL;

358m39300 5 39dmogzsi0s (1 doyemgdqbo,
3 3mmdnms, 2012 Bemob dwpamowo gobgon-

 Church Development Service (EED);

o Bread For The World;

« UN Development Program;

» Open Society — Georgia Foundation;

o Eurasia Partnership Foundation;

o USAID program “Democratic Governance
in Georgia”;

 Delegation of the European Union to Geor-
gia;

o Community Development Journal (CDJ).

Our activities in 2013 (core quantitative
indicators):

o In 2013 we were working in Tbilisi and 11
municipalities (Telavi, Sighnaghi, Kvareli,
Sagarejo and Lagodekhi in the Eastern
Georgia, Chokhatauri, Ozurgeti, Abasha,
Martvili, Senaki and Khobi in the Western
Georgia). At the same time, we also had
some nationwide programs;

« We were implementing 7 grant programs
and 14 service contracts;

5 publications (1 bulletins, 3 brochures, and
a 2012 sustainability report) were published
by us.
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o Conducted 40 trainings independently or
in cooperation with other invited experts.

In particular, trainings were conducted for:

- 11 local governments from 11 regions of
Georgia;

- 86 civil society organizations (from Tbi-
lisi and various regions of Georgia)

- Members of 31 village initiative groups/
organizations in 11 Georgian munici-
palities

» Provided consultations for 53 organizations
(11 municipalities and 42 non-governmen-
tal organizations)

« The Civil Monitoring Network, which is led
by our organization, provided numerous
recommendations to 11 Georgian munici-
palities regarding budgetary processes and
transparency issues. 88 of the recommenda-
tions were taken into account.

e 52 755 GEL worth micro-grants were
awarded to 11 initiative groups and non-
governmental organizations

o Organized 54 public hearing sessions on
various important issues

o Together with partners from the Georgian
regional network, monitored 11 municipal
budgets.

Our main accomplishments in 2013:

In 2013, CSRDG completed implementation
of activities planned by 2011-2013 Three Year
Programme. Thus, in the below section, we will
address separate accomplishments in 2013, as
well as the achievements during the 2011-2013
period.

o Community Development Resource cen-
tre successfully started operating on the
organisation basis, providing services to
community groups/organisations operat-
ing in Georgian municipalities (see detailed
information on page 31). In particular, the
resource centre:
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- put to operation a bilingual, permanently
renewable information web-portal on
community development issues — www.
cdre.ge;

- prepared an updated database on the
community based organisations operat-
ing throughout the country. Information
and respective map of the organisations is
posted on the resource centre web portal;

- created a thematic information-electronic
journal and a special Face-book page;

- held joint trainings, seminars and experi-
ence sharing events nationwide for inter-
ested community based organisations.

« Evaluation of 12 target community youth

organisations supported by CSRDG re-
vealed high effectivity of the community
centres activities and an increasing tenden-
cy of stable development (see detailed in-
formation on page 38). The following facts
indicated to this:

- Community Youth Centres offer the local
residents real assistance and necessary ser-
vices;

- Programmes and projects of other organi-
sations started on the basis of the commu-
nity centres, and leaders prepared by the
programme, turned into a support force
for other initiatives; as a result of getting
actively involved in new initiatives in
2013, services offered by them to residents
of five communities (15100 people) be-
came more diverse and of a higher quality.
In 2013, the number of beneficiaries using
the new services made 5 884 people;

- Community Centres achieved financial
sustainability and independence. Keep-
ing in mind that their funding from the
Program was being gradually decreased,
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in 2013, total budget of the Community
Centres increased by 34% as compared to
2011 (at the expense of alternative fund-
ing sources);

- In cooperation with village residents,
municipalities and local businesses, com-
munity centres strongly influence the
process of resolving local problems ef-
fectively. With the efforts taken by com-
munity youth centres, in 2011-2013, 176
local problems were resolved in 12 target
municipalities, out of which, 123 problems
were solved with fundings from the local
budgets, and 53 problems were solved with
own resources and finances attracted from
various funds. In particular, the funds at-
tracted from other sources made 277 220
GEL. As a result, living conditions were
improved for 25 860 persons.

« CSRDG was one of the first local organisa-

tions that started introduction of Social En-
trepreneurship in Georgia and promotion of
practical activities in its support. In order to
achieve the mentioned goal, Centre for So-
cial Entrepreneurship was established on the
basis of our organisation, (see more detailed
information on page 43) which:

for interested persons and organisations,
developed a wide range of trainings and
consultations adapted to our reality, and
published the first Georgian language
handbook;

- Increased the level of interest in various
sectors towards social enterprising. With
this respect, CSRDG was actively work-
ing with: academic circles; civil society
organisations; donors; the Ministry of La-
bor, Health and Social Protection; the
Ministry of Sports and Youth Affairs; local
self-governments and penitentiary system
institutions. It should be noted that, with
efforts taken by CSRDG, an annual com-
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petition - Students in Support of Social
Entrepreneurship - was launched, with
students from Tbilisi higher education
facilities taking part. 140 students partici-
pated in the competition Students in Sup-
port of Social Enterprising 2013. Out of
them, 12 students got actively involved in
volunteering to solve marketing problems
of three social enterprises. Marketing ac-
tivities carried out by the students at the
initial stage of projects developed by them
increased the sales of those enterprises al-
ready in the first few months and brought
10-20% additional profit. It is important
that the revenue received from the enter-
prises was spent on their beneficiaries -
people with limited abilities, children with
leukaemia and their parents;

Achieved notable results in the introduc-
tion of social enterprising practices and
creation of new social enterprises. In par-
ticular: gave basis to the operation of 12
social enterprises, out of which, 7 enter-
prises operate stably and successfully, 3 of
them are in the process of strengthening,
and 2 more are on the initial stage of their
development. Currently, the enterprises
give jobs to more than 40 individuals that
are lower competitive on the labor market,
such as: people with limited abilities, fe-
male victims of domestic violence, former
pupils of orphanages, IDPs, people with
long unemployment history, etc;

Was promoting network activities of so-
cial enterprises. As a result, for the sake
of experience sharing, it gave a start to
annual joint meetings of Georgian social
entrepreneurs. Besides, it was providing
information support to beginning and ex-
perienced social entrepreneurs through in-
formative-analytical web portal www.cse.
ge, electronic thematic journal and social
network media.
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As a result of the activities implemented
under CSRDG Self-Governance Develop-
ment Program (for more details, see page
55), activities of the target municipalities
have improved considerably. In particu-
lar:

- Activity standards of the target municipali-
ties have been brought closer in line with
the requirements of the Georgian legisla-
tion regarding transparency and account-
ability. Situation with regards to meeting
the timelines and procedural requirements
of the budgetary processes has also im-
proved.

- In the target municipalities, implementation
of programs envisaged by the local budg-
ets has improved considerably, spending
of money allocated from the local budg-
ets has become more targeted. As a re-
sult, the number of resolved problems has
increased, Namely: In one of the target
municipalities, funding of kindergartens
increased by 300 000 GEL. As a result,
conditions improved in all kindergartens
of the target municipality and the num-
ber of children attending the kindergar-
tens increased the following year. This
specific change in the municipal budget
has improved quality of life of more than
50% residents of the target municipality;
As a result of developing new health-
care and social assistance programs in 7
out of the 8 Kakheti municipalities, the
level of social services of more than 50%
of residents in the region has improved
considerably, etc.

- Citizens involvement in the formation,
approval, execution and reporting stages
of the self-governed entity budgets has in-
creased;

- Accomplishment of the listed results be-
came possible as a result of effective and
successful activities of the Civili Monitor-
ing Network created by CSRDG. Beside
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CSRDS, our regional partner organisa-
tions from Kakheti and Guria are switched
to the Network;

Analysis of the results of monitoring car-
ried out throughout the years in the tar-
get municipalities has become a basis for
problem generalisation to the national
level and development of recommenda-
tions for their solving. For example: based
on the analysis of Rural Development
Program results monitoring conducted in
2013, CSRDG experts developed a pack-
age of recommendations that was pre-
sented to the Ministry of Regional Devel-
opment and Infrastructure. The Ministry
approved majority of the recommenda-
tions and requested their consideration
from all Georgian municipalities, which,
eventually, will make a positive impact on
the purposefulness of the programs imple-
mented in the villages, their adequacy and
financial management publicity;

Besides, on international level, CSRDG
was actively participating in local self-gov-
ernance related initiatives and projects. In
cooperation with local non-governmental
organisations, CSRDG most recent ini-
tiatives were aimed at identification of
the needs of reforms on the regional and
municipal levels in the Eastern Partner-
ship Countries, as well as at revealing of
problems regarding citizens participation
in the local self-governance in those same
States and development of respective rec-
ommendations. The mentioned materials
became a basis for the Address (Memo-
randum) of the Forum of Civil Society
organisations established in the Eastern
Partnership Countries to the Eastern Part-
nership Local and Regional Management
Assembly created by the EU Committee of
Regions. Besides, recommendations were
developed, presented and discussed at the
meeting of Eastern Partnership Civil Soci-
ety Organisations Forum.
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CSRDG was one of the co-coordinators
of the 3rd work group of Eastern Partner-
ship Civil Forum National Platform. In
2012-2013, the group carried out a suc-
cessful advocacy campaign against chang-
es made in the environmental legislation
(the Government, in return for a certain
sum, became able to exempt business op-
erators from environment protection re-
sponsibilities). The Government satisfied
the protest of non-governmental organi-
sations, and annulled respective changes
in the law;

CSRDG is actively working on the one
hand to promote adequately reflect cus-
tomers right protection issues in the
Georgian legislation, and, on the other
hand, to reveal customers right violation
cases and react to them (for more details,
see page 69). In 2011-2013, activities car-
ried out by CSRDG in this area made im-
portant contribution in the adoption of
several specific legislative changes, which,
eventually, resulted in the increase of food
market safety for the customers. For ex-
ample:

- The Ministry of Agriculture considered
recommendations developed by CSRDG
regarding the changes to be made to the
Law on Food/Animal Food Safety, Vet-
erinary and Plants Protection. Namely:
an article on the protection of customers
rights and interests has been added to the
draft law prepared by the Ministry; trans-
parency of State control has increased; the
law draconic requirement has been an-
nulled, according to which, the National
Agency on Food Safety was to consider
customers complaints only if the customer
would provide results of the food product
laboratory testing and respective medical
report on food poisoning; etc.

- As a result of CSRDG initiative, from
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the beginning of 2013, the Euro Integra-
tion Committee created a work group, in
which our expert was involved actively
and worked during 10 months on drafting
the law. At the public meeting held on De-
cember, 2013, presentation of the draft law
was held. The law is planned to be ratified
in 2014;

CSRDG is actively working on issues to im-
prove food safety standards and technical
requirements. Based on CSRDG initiative,
a petition against dairy products falsifica-
tion was prepared. In December 2013, the
petition was presented to the Parliament,
requesting to pass such law that would
ban labelling and selling of products as
“dairy” when the main ingredients (e.g.
fat, protein) are made from other materi-
als instead of animal milk. In December
2013, at the background of public signing
of the petition, a work group was set up in
the Ministry of Agriculture, which started
preparation of technical requirements for
dairy products based on international
standards;

An interactive web-page www.momx-
marebeli.ge was created and gained cus-
tomers trust. On this web-site, interested
persons are able to get familiar with cus-
tomer rights, or violations of these rights,
as well as to place their comments and
personal experience regarding violation
of the mentioned rights. The fact that
the number of the web-site daily visitors
ranges between 400 to 2000 indicate to
the popularity and trustworthiness of the
web-site. Each year, on the average up to
100 products were being tested upon the
customers request. More than 1/3 of the
revealed violations have been fixed and
improved owing to efforts by CSRDG ex-
perts.
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In 2011-2013, CSRDG was actively work-
ing for the introduction of corporate so-
cial responsibility in the country. Its ac-
tivities involved work with government
structures in order to develop a respective
promoting policy, as well as directly with
large businesses, aimed at raising their
awareness and ensuring accessibility of the
expertise. In particular:

- Ananalytical study - Corporate Social Re-
sponsibility and the Role of the Public Sec-
tor (Analytical Review and Recommenda-
tions to the Government of Georgia) - was
prepared and published as a separate
book;

- A course of lectures on corporate social re-
sponsibility developed by CSRDG expert
became a mandatory class for students of
Caucasus School of Business. The men-
tioned course is held in the University by
a CSRDG staff member;

- The first Georgian language handbook for
Georgian universities on corporate social
responsibility was prepared and published.
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The organizational and management struc-
ture of CSRDG is designed to ensure a clear as-
signment of functions and responsibilities, and
the inclusion of all employees in decision mak-
ing processes.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is the highest governing body that
ensures the fulfillment of the statutory objec-
tives of the organization; approves strategic de-
velopment plans, programs, and terms of their
implementation; hears the annual program and
financial reports of the Chairman of the Board
and Executive Director concerning the con-
ducted activities and future plans; approves the
annual budget of the programs; oversees the ex-
penditure of the organization’s funds; controls
the observance of legal and accounting require-
ments.

The Board consists of five members, three
of whom are independent and non-executive.
The other two members serve CSRDG in an ex-
ecutive capacity, namely: executive director and
program coordinator. The former is also the
chairperson of the Board. Board members are
volunteers and are not remunerated.

CSRDG’s long-term objective is to gradu-
ally increase the number of independent Board
members by either replacing current executive
members or adding one or two new members
who will already have experience in the main
areas of the organization’s activities and will
bring new vision and approach to the Board’s
activity.

The Board is an elective body. At first, Board
members are elected by the organization’s
founders, and later, the Curatorium elects the
Board which serves for a period of four years.

= 1 B
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Members of the present board (elected in
2010 for 4 years) are:

 Eka Urushadze (Chairperson of the Board)
o Eka Datuashvili

o Levan Avalishvili

o David Gzirishvili

o Otar Babunashvili

The Board regularly meets twice a year.
When necessary, additional board meeting can
be convened if requested by 1/3 of the members
of the Board.

The Executive Director, appointed by the
Board, directs the organization’s work in ac-
cordance with the objectives and plans elabo-
rated by the Board. Responsibilities of the Ex-
ecutive Director include managing CSRDG’s
daily activities; presenting it at various levels;
reporting on the Centre’s current activity to the
Board; controlling expenditure of the funds;
day-today management of the finances and
other tangible assets of the organization, as well
as responsibility for their adequate utilization;
ensuring unimpeded functioning of the organi-
zation and its sustainable development; staff
recruitment and capacity building; implemen-
tation of other functions required for tactical
management of CSRDG’s activities.

In order to carry out activities in CSRDG’s
priority areas, programs and sub-programs
have been developed which are implemented
by work groups. The groups are coordinated
by program coordinators (heads of the work
groups). The main functions of the program
coordinators are: management, monitoring
and evaluation of the program activities, and
preparation of program reports. They are also
responsible for the activities of the personnel
under their supervision.

Program coordinators and the executive di-
rector also form CSRDG’s consultative body
- the Intermediate Managerial Unit (IMU) or
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Directorate. The aim of the middle manage-
rial unit is to direct the daily activities of the
organization and ensure equal participation by
middle-level managers in decision-making on
issues of various importance. Within its com-
petence, the IMU takes independent decisions.
Also, the unit has a consultative function re-
garding final decisions made by the Executive
Director. The intermediate managerial unit
meets with the Executive Director at least once
a month, or more often if necessary.

The Curatorium is CSRDG’s supervisory
body which controls the Board’s activities and
the performance of the administration on the
basis of the Law and Charter; and presents advi-
sory opinion at the Board meetings concerning
the activities and strategies to be implemented
by the organization. The Curatorium has three
members elected by the Centres founders for
an indefinite period of time. The members of
the Curatorium work in a voluntary capacity.

If necessary, upon the Board’s decision, one
or several Expert Councils are created for a
fixed period of time and a special purpose. The
Expert Council represents CSRDG’s advisory
body. Its main function is the provision of ex-
pertise for program implementation.

Employee engagement and participation in
decision making

By effective communication and a partici-
patory approach CSRDG tries to ensure that,
when making important decisions for the or-
ganization, every employee’s opinion is heard
and taken into consideration as far as possible.

Horizontal and vertical mechanisms of com-
munication and engagement are introduced
and operate in the organization. In particular:

» General monthly meeting of all employees,
where every employee can express his/her
opinion and state his/her position to the or-
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ganization’s management.

o Within the programs, regular meetings are
held between the program manager and pro-
gram staff, where staff members can express
their position and opinion.

o Meetings of the Intermediate Managerial
Unit (comprised of program and direction
coordinators) are held on a monthly basis,
where, as needed, the program coordinator
can present his/her staff members’ opinions
or comments.

» Regular Board meetings are held once half-
yearly. If required, a special meeting can also
be convened. The Executive Director can
present to the Board employees opinions
and comments expressed at the IMU meet-
ings. The Executive Director can also request
the attendance of the respective program co-
ordinator at the Board meeting, where the
program coordinator is able to directly pre-
sent the staft’s opinions.

o The program Network’s coordination meet-
ings are also held once every six months,
where members of our organization and our
two partner organizations are able to raise is-
sues and state their opinions. The issues are
later discussed at IMU meetings and, if nec-
essary, also at the Board meetings.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Being a civil organization and driven primar-
ily by social goals, CSRDG considers commu-
nication with our numerous stakeholders to be
one of the main components of our activities.
As arule, within every new program, or prior to
starting a new stage in an existing one, our tar-
get groups and stakeholders are identified and
the communication and feedback processes
planned.
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Our main stakeholders are:

 Organization’s employees

e Donors

« Civil organizations (partner non-govern-
mental organizations from Tbilisi and other
regions, village initiative groups)

 Our target municipalities

o Some of the ministries, with which the or-
ganization interacts during our activities

+ Georgian private companies interested in the
implementation of the corporate social re-
sponsibility;

» Georgian universities where the corporate
social responsibility is included or is planned
to be into the curriculum;

o Addressees of our publications - research in-
stitutes and colleges/universities, as well as
experts from various spheres

o Members of the CSRDG’s network of experts

+ Beneficiary organizations of the trainings
held by us

» Media sources

Our organization constantly stays in touch
with numerous groups of its stakeholders, in
order to identify their expectations and needs,
as well as to evaluate their level of satisfaction
with the organization’ activity.

A variety of communication methods is ap-
plied for different stakeholder groups.

Our employees, one of the most important
groups of the organization’s stakeholders, are
sent daily digests with brief news about our
ongoing programs. Besides, general staff meet-
ings are held regularly (monthly), where each
program coordinator presents the activities
and future plans for their respective programs.
During the meetings the personnel are able to
ask questions and raise or discuss any organiza-
tional or program related issue, which, in their
opinion, need to be improved.

Our financial and program reports are regu-
larly prepared for the donors, and future action
plans are presented. Feedback is provided by
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means of comments on the reports or action
plans. Co-ordination and consultation meet-
ings are also held regularly with target groups
or partner civil organizations (rural community
groups, coalition member non-governmental
organizations from Tbilisi, or our regional part-
ner NGOs). These provide opportunities for
sharing experience, aligning different positions,
discussing issues and planning future activities.

The organization regularly invites our inter-
locutory government representatives, as well as
various spherical experts and addressees of our
publications, to seminars and public hearings
organized by us, where opinions are expressed
and exchanged. Recommendations made by
CSRDG to various government agencies are
also often discussed at joint work meetings.

Furthermore, program coordinators regular-
ly inform the authors of the articles published
in our bulletins (members of CSRDG’s network
of experts) about the plans made for our re-
search activity. The authors have opportunities
to make certain corrections in the plans and
offer suggestions (e.g. recommend program co-
ordinators to conduct research on some other
additional or relevant issues).

We mainly communicate with our target pri-
vate companies at different forums and work-
shops, such as meetings of the regional network
of the Global Compact, meetings organized by
the Social Responsibility Council of the Ameri-
can Chamber of Commerce and various con-
ferences and seminars dedicated to the social
responsibility etc.

Feedback from the beneficiaries of our ser-
vices (trainings and consultations) is received
through special questionnaires that are distrib-
uted to the participants as well as through spe-
cial surveys.

Media sources are regularly provided with
information about our activities through press-
releases and other hand-outs. We conduct daily
content analysis of the main media sources,
and our experts’ special comments on any im-
portant issues identified are provided to the
respective Media. If needed, press-conferences
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and discussions with the Media are organized,
where they can obtain answers on questions of
interest to them.

Other instruments for keeping the stake-
holders informed and communicating with
them are our internet website and our publi-
cations (regular bulletins, annual reports and
other publications). CSRDG’s contact details,
as well as a request to contact us and give us
feedback, is provided on the website and pub-
lished in every bulletin. This is quite an active
mechanism, and readers of our publications or
website visitors regularly call CSRDG with vari-
ous questions or comments. The comments re-
ceived are collected, discussed and considered
when planning our next activities.

The Centre also conducts fairly regular so-
ciological research with various target groups
aimed at measuring their satisfaction level with
our activities and identifying any existing prob-
lems. Based on the survey results, changes are
made in the current projects and future strategy
planned.
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CSRDG’s THREE YEAR PROGRAMME
(2011-2013)

CSRDG’s Three Year Program aims to achieve
the organisation’s mission - supporting mutual
effective participation of the governmental,
public and business sectors in the processes of
the democratic development of Georgia and, by
establishing social partnership among all three
sectors, promoting improvements in the quality
of life of socially unprotected population.

In order to achieve these program objectives,
the organisation has developed various imple-
mentation strategies:

» Advocacy campaigns on State policy priority
issues;

 Raise problems/issues which are relevant to
the public to the decision makers;

 Support to increase the effectiveness of ac-
tivities, by stimulating coalition and network
types of work;

» Monitoring the implementation of govern-
ment programs and reforms;

» Monitoring municipality activities and sup-
port in increasing their accountability;

« Community/rural development;

o Technical support (consultations and train-
ing) to national and local non-governmental
organisations and public schools;

« Support for civil society development, by
creating a favourable environment;

o Popularisation of Corporate Social Respon-
sibility (CSR) and participation in the devel-
opment of State policies for SCR support.

CSRDG undertakes its activities in a net-
work-coalition form. In Tbilisi and the 11
municipalities of Georgia - Lagodekhi, Ozur-
geti, Chokhatauri, Sighnaghi, Telavi, Kvareli,
Sagarejo, Abasha, Martvili, Senaki and Khobi
- community development and municipality
monitoring activities are being carried out by
a Network created under the program. In the

o 1 B
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second half of 2013, geographic coverage of
the target municipalities expanded and 6 new
municipalities were added to 5 previous ones.
In particular, the new municipalities are: in
Kakheti - Kvareli and Sagarejo, in Samegrelo -
Abasha, Martvili, Senaki and Khobi.

The Network has been operating since 2002,
and its members are CSRDG’s partner organi-
sations — “Georgian Civil Development As-
sociation” (Lagodekhi) and “Georgian Demo-
cratic Development Union” (Ozurgeti). As for
Telavi, activities of the Network are carried out
by CSRDG Telavi Bureau. Activities carried out
through the Network make it possible to iden-
tify local problems, better understand their spe-
cific nature, and generalise these to the national
level.

Three sub-programs are being implemented
under the Three Year Program - Strengthen-
ing Civil Society Institutions; the Promotion of
Good Governance; and Promotion of the De-
velopment of Corporate Social Responsibility.

In 2013, CSRDG successfully completed the
2011-2013 Three Year Programme. Main ac-
complishments of the programme are present-
ed in the sub-section “CSRDG Main Accom-
plishments of this report (see page 10)
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PROGRAM -
STRENGTHENING CIVIL SOCIETY
INSTITUTIONS

The goal of the program is to assist the
institutional and financial sustainability of
local, regional and national civil society insti-
tutions, so that they provide adequate services
to, and effectively represent the interests of,
their target groups.

The strategy developed to achieve the pro-
gram goal involves the promotion of civil so-
ciety development, by creating an environment
which is beneficial to action, and providing
technical/ informational assistance to non-
governmental organisations and community
groups.

The program covers both national as well as
local levels and is being carried out in two main
ways. Two sub-programs have been developed
under these activities: Development of Civil
Society Organisations, and Community Devel-
opment.

SUB-PROGRAM - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

The community development program is
aimed at ensuring resources and information
are accessible to community groups/organisa-
tions in Georgian municipalities, so that the
population is able to effectively use its capaci-
ties and tackle local problems.

The program strategy is to offer community
groups/community based organisations operat-
ing in Georgia some complex services, such as,
for example: ensuring the accessibility of infor-
mation resources (eg information on funding
sources, training, case studies of success, etc.)
and experience sharing opportunities. Special
attention is paid to the promotion of partner-
ships with strong civil society organisations, in
order to achieve sustainability for community
groups/community based organisations.
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In addition, the strengthening of 12 target
community groups/community based organi-
sations created under the Program in 2008-
2010 continues, so that they are better able to
bring forward village interests and lobby about
these with local government.

Community Development Resource
Centre

On the basis of Center for Strategic Research
and Development of Georgia, a resource center
to supporting rural community based organi-
zations/groups operating in Georgian munici-
palities was created in 2011, and was put to
active operation in 2012-2013. It helps build
the capacity of these organisations, promotes a
continuous information flow between existing
groups, and helps provide information about
them to a broader audience.

Database of Community Groups/Organi-
sations

A continuously updated database of commu-
nity groups/organisations operating in Georgia
has been created by the resource centre. The da-
tabase contains information on 95 community
groups/ organisations, the geographic cover-
age of their activities, their main aims and tar-
get groups, as well as recent/new activities and
ongoing projects. The information is presented
on the web-portal of the Community Develop-
ment Resource Centre in the form of a map of
the community centres and a special table (see
information about the web-portal below).

The Web-portal of the Community Devel-
opment Resource Centre (CDRC)

In 2011, as part of the Community Develop-
ment Resource Centre, a web-portal www.cdrc.
ge was created. The portal is a continuously
updated source of information on community
development issues and is meant not only for
community groups and organisations, but also
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for the interested public, international organi-
sations, government agencies, and representa-
tives of the business and media sectors.

Through this web-portal, interested organi-
sations are able to get information on such
practical and interesting issues as:

o Community groups actively working in
Georgia;

« Possibilities for funding community groups;

 Organisations and programs working on
community development issues;

« Thematic publications and useful literature;

+ Information on Consultations, training,
seminars and joint events;

« Success case studies of community group ac-
tivities;

+ Local and international thematic news.

The web-portal is a good way for interested
organisations to publicise their successes to
a broader audience: one section of the web-
portal is fully dedicated to the description and
popularisation of community groups’ success
stories, and is enriched with photographs and
videos.

It should be noted that, with financial sup-
port provided in 2012 by the International
Community Development Journal’s Develop-
ment Fund, translation of the web-portal ma-
terials into English became possible and the
portal is now accessible for English speakers as
well. Also, a special Facebook page for the com-
munity development resource centre was creat-
ed. Like the web-portal, the Facebook page also
presents information on interesting projects in
this area, as well as competitions and ongoing
news.

In addition, 4 Resource Centre electronic
journals were prepared and distributed to all
stakeholders, summarising information on the
most interesting recent news, new initiatives,
and various grant competitions.
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Seminars, Consultations, Training

In 2013, the topics for seminars and training
events were selected by considering the inter-
ests and needs of the community groups. This
information was collected by means of direct
interviews and a web-based interactive survey.
After this, the Resource Centre located respec-
tive resources (organisations, experts), inviting
them to hold events. Members of the target
youth community centres, as well as represent-
atives of other community groups/community
based organisations operating in Georgia were
able to attend the training and seminars. Infor-
mation on planned events was distributed via
the Community Development Resource Cen-
tre web-portal.

Thematic seminar was held for community
groups and addressed the reform of territorial
arrangement of local self-government. The fol-
lowing issues were discussed during the semi-
nar: local self-governance on the village level;
local self-governance on municipal level; and
regional level self-governed units.

The program entailed two types of train-
ing:

+ Open training for all interested community
groups;

 Training only for target community youth
organisations.
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The training events covered the following
topics:

v Civil engagement and community devel-
opment;

v Gender equality principles;

v Business planning.

In 2013, Center for Strategic Research and
Development of Georgia started implementa-
tion of a new program - “Empowering Women
for Change”. An important component of the
program is formation and strengthening of
female leaders groups. Majority of the above
mentioned trainings was serving this particular
purpose.

Interested organizations were able to get
consultations from the resource center experts
via the Internet or face-to-face, while, if no ex-
pertise was available on the ground, they were
as much as possible referred to respective indi-
viduals or organizations.

Consultations held in 2013 addressed the
following issues: creation of tender application
documents, project writing, strategic planning,
creation of program action plan, report writing,
preparation of presentations, planning joint
events, participation in decision making pro-
cesses on the local level.
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Strengthening of Target Community
Groups/Community Based Organisations

In 2013, the Community Development Pro-
gram continued to support and strengthen the
11 active community youth centres created in
the previous years, so that they are better able
to bring forward the village interests and lobby
about these to local governments. It should
also be mentioned here that 10 community
centers got involved in CSRDG new program
Strengthening of “Empowering Women for
Change”, which was launched in 2013 and is
aimed at women’s equality, promotion of their
economic and civic activeness in Samegrelo
and Kakheti regions. Respectively, geographic
coverage of the Community Development Pro-
gramme was expanded, and Samegrelo region
was added to Kakheti region. Overall, 31 com-
munity groups are involved in the new pro-
gram - 10 of those existing previously and 21
new ones. It is important, that newly created
community centers are groups of female lead-
ers (179 leader women from 8 municipalities:
94 from Kakheti and 85 from Samegrelo).

Workshops and consultations held with the
community centres, Program experts prepared
one year action plans for each centre’s activi-
ties.

Under this Program, experts were constant-
ly holding consultations and workshops for
the community youth centres on such issues
as: registration of an organisation, financial
accountability, project writing, reporting and
management issues, self-evaluation, planning,
strengthening ‘initiative groups, planning and
organising of joint events between commu-
nity groups, organization of presentations for
various agencies, participation in the activity of
public boards at the municipalities, etc.

Besides, workshops were held for 26 female
community groups involved in the “Empower-
ing Women for Change” programme, and, as

-



37 B20Y6N0 963564030 2013

badgdom 3gbggmMgdo, GmIgmas dgegas®  a result, the women prepared presentations on
g‘%@i"@zsgbﬁ" gg’thUb N %’Q‘g(’g’ma’g’”g” local problems for representatives of self-gov-
MOCTYIYO0D  2OBOBGIED 90056260000 erpments. Afterwards, the women got actively

E?mng)oab?o:?oab@%%t it dfﬁao(g)ao:(%%f? dagzz in'volved‘ in the local budget forrflation process
o Boghmabb soaommdmogn domggdob il particular, they held 59 meetings with local
QmEG0Fgd0L 3Gm39L30, ggMdme Rss@amgl  governments and presented their presentations
59 3gb390Ms saommdmog dmsgmmdabmsb s to them. As a result, funds that are needed to
Bomanbgl 3mdbargdynme 3Mgbgb@o30g9d0.  solve 51 problems outlined in the presentations

93@gasr  3MbbGe30gddn sxbaMoro ST 4re envisaged in the 2014 local budgets.
36mdmg3al gosdfnbomgzalb Lagomm msbbgda

30m35mabBobgdmmos 2014 Brmob smgoemm-
3603 doyxg@gddo.

2013 6IQL JOT01S LO(I3M X3IVBISNL IRINTM3AHN3 LOS3NIXRISM 36MBILIBIN dI&NIEHN RIM-
019 M3OL 3IRIBIX 26 01330L 3MLOYLRIMBNOL BbM3MIBNL bIGOLLEN 3OTVIXMBILRIBY, MIRSI6IE
0R3NT M6 030 013003336:0133M3NLOIBNL 3NE6MRIBITN 3MM3TIFISNRIE6 51-0L 3IRIFANLAIZNL
LOFNEHM 01066ISN 330139 NLENEISITNY 2014 BXOL IR3NTM3AN3 30IRISGI33N. 8 3T6NBNIIT-
0&360L 0130013360133 M3I330 393MI3IL 515 285 WIANL MRIGMBNL 01966I30N, HMITNMOG 3M3-
39»MRJI3 26 013330 3BbLM3EI3N 399 092 dRI3NV6NL 3IIRIBN LIFNHIMHMEM LO3NMbLIBN: 3NRD
353380L 333301389, 3RN6IANL RI3NGHISNL 393934 IdY, LOLAITN BITOL LOLGI3JI3NL 33330MIBY,
JOR0)S 3I63IRGIBNL YRINTIBNL 3MBIMBY, 39623330L R L33IMIBNL 3MEIMBY, 63330L 3MESIN-
6363300L RY3IMEGITIBY, L3MEBEIEIMIR 3IJIENTN 65303LOIAITIBN 659330LBO6 3d63I6RY, JIRNL
3960013300L 3MBEBHIN, LORAIEIIM LOLBEIZIBNL 33J93969, LMVLRIBLY R JONVIIBL 3MHOL 3MLIL-
QIM30L I3AMB3RIM 33RHIKINTI3NLOIZOL LOYOBAIBL3MEAESM LOFIITRISIBNL 333MIMVB RS 35010
30RJ0R3NTJ3NL 33665030L 3IR3I6Y.

IN 2013, AS A RESULT OF ACTIVE INVOLVEMENT OF WOMEN’S COMMUNITY GROUPS IN THE LOCAL
BUDGETING PROCESSES, QUALITY OF LIFE OF 26 COMMUNITY RESIDENTS WILL IMPROVE, BECAUSE
NECESSARY FUNDING TO SOLVE 51 IDENTIFIED LOCAL PROBLEMS ARE ENVISAGED IN THE 2014 LOCAL
BUDGETS. LOCAL GOVERNMENTS OF 8 MUNICIPALITIES HAVE ALLOCATED GEL 515 285, THAT WILL SOLVE
PROBLEMS OF 399 092 PEOPLE LIVING IN 26 COMMUNITIES: REPAIR OF INNER ROADS, STRENGTHENING
OF RIVER EMBANKMENTS, REPAIR OF POTABLE WATER SUPPLY SYSTEMS; ARRANGING PLACES FOR WOM-
EN’S MEETINGS; ARRANGING OF PARKS AND SQUARES; INSTALLING GARBAGE BINS; CLEANING GARBAGE
FROM SPONTANEOUS LANDFILLS; INSTALLING STREET LIGHTS; BUILDING DRAINAGE SYSTEMS; PROVID-
ING TRANSPORT FOR RESIDENTS TO FREELY COMMUTE BETWEEN VILLAGES AND TOWNS AND MAKING
THEIR TIMETABLE.
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golseygin Sglsmgaigo, @milugeiy e cussing the achievements and success, holding
&Mgd0 LomdMMIBqb Fombgmm dgmgagdbes . . . .

presentations enriched with photo and video
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Bobomoom  3sBp0pMgdnm  36Hgbgbeo30gdb, materlals', talking about common problems
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396dMX, L3d BMERIBNRIE6 3MJINISIXN 01966I3NL MIMRIEMSI3 277 220 WOAN 3JOR3N69. SLINNO
30MIIGI3N0 RIGIARD JIIRIBN SN30L LOIZNV6M3I3N: LOHL3ITN BITOL 3MMJdRIINL 3M339MIBY
(3MLILKRIMBNOLY R LAMRNLYM3NOL); LEMESGIRN LMENLJNIBIBNL MEBIENDBIBY; VHIBVMEHIITIMN
306001J30L LIT3IEIMBY (&@IBNE63I30/LIFN6IMIBN/LITLOIANL 3TMLIBN); 3MLOLEIMBOL
3M3LOLIMIBY (3MI3NVEIAITN/LO3O63M); LMNBNIRNIMN 3IBIM3IM3NL LITIIBIMBY (LO33IEM3D-
ML 39dRNIMIBY, 3IBIG3AIMBY) 3IRIJOX 12 013330 IBLM3HIBN 25 860 3RINIENL LOBLM3FHIBI-
0 396J3M 35IIXM3ILRKY.

WITH THE EFFORTS TAKEN BY COMMUNITY YOUTH CENTERS ESTABLISHED AND STRENGTHENED UN-
DER THE PROGRAM, 176 LOCAL PROBLEMS WERE SOLVED IN 2011-2013 IN 12 TARGET MUNICIPALITIES. OUT
OF THOSE, 123 PROBLEMS WERE SOLVED BY LOCAL BUDGET FUNDING, AND 53 PROBLEMS WERE TACKLED
USING OWN RESOURCES AND MONEY ATTRACTED FROM VARIOUS FUNDS. IN PARTICULAR, THE SUM AT-
TRACTED FROM OTHER FUNDS MADE GEL 277 220. THE FOLLOWING TYPES OF WORK WERE CARRIED OUT
UNDER THOSE PROJECTS: SOLVING POTABLE WATER PROBLEM (FOR RESIDENTS AND A SCHOOL); HOLDING
SPORTS EVENTS; ASSISTANCE TO INFORMAL EDUCATION (TRAININGS/SEMINARS/HANDICRAFT COURSES);
SERVICES PROVIDED TO THE RESIDENTS (COMPUTER/BANKING); PROMOTION OF SOCIAL ENTERPRISING
(STRENGTHENING A SEWING ENTERPRISE, BEE-KEEPING). AS A RESULT, LIVING ENVIRONMENT OF 25 860
RESIDENTS OF 12 COMMUNITIES WERE IMPROVED.

Lymgdm (396@®gd0L  Lygdnsbmdanb Evaluation of the Community Centres’ Ac-
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tivities

At the end of the year, evaluation workshops
were held for community centres to discuss
their program indicators and the quality of
their work. In addition, an external evaluation
was also carried out using public opinion sur-
veys

The internal evaluation showed a high ef-
fectiveness and a growing trend of a stable de-
velopment. The fact that the community cen-
tres independently accomplished 38 initiatives
without assistance from the Program proves
the above statement. These include the funding
received from other foundations and munici-
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palities to solve local problems, as well as those
problems that were solved by municipalities
based on the information received from com-
munity centres.

Each year, community youth centers solve
tens of local problems by their proactive coop-
eration with municipalities and engagement in
decision making processes.

Community centers have become a relying
force for projects and programs run by other
organizations. For example, in 2012, Computer
Knowledge Spreading Society started imple-

mentation of a new nationwide project. The
program had envisaged establishment of Village
Computer Service Centers in rural settlements,
supposed to provide computer equipment and
hold technical trainings for the staff of the cent-
ers. Respectively, finding office space for com-
puter centers became relevant. Five community
centers in our target villages offered the program
to arrange computer centers in their premises.
As a result, in 2013, community youth centers

doo  dbomo  3GMmamadal  gobbmM(sngmgds
©o0bym.  3Mmamsdoo  0ggadgdmes  bLod-
0b6g Lexkgmgddo “bLmgmol 3MI3onEgHmo
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53 3mmobb3mdos 89460300 0bHM63gmym-
3oL s (396@Mgo0l 086533 MImmgdabamgals
&9d60gm60 GFgbobagdolb Ro@omgdsb. dgbo-
3530bo sd@omyGn gobos 3m330EGgfmmao
(396&M930L 45bLoMd3Lgdmow sanmbg bogm-
0L 8mdogds. Rzgbo mMasbods(z00lb Ladnbby
bmgmgddo g56mogbgdmm8s bmmds Lomgdm

LYAI3M dLIRNBIBARIN() BIEGMIBN IRINTM3AN3 IMLILKIMBIL HIINIM ROb-
306J30L R LOYFNAM 3M3LOLIMIBIL LAIO3ODBMBI6. 2013 BITL dbOX N60BNIGN33330
0d&NIMN RYGAIBNL 3IRIBORX 3501 303 5 1I3NL 3MLOYLEIMSOLOIBAL (15 100 9RVIN-
060L0I3NOL) 330133533 IXN 3MILOLIMIBY IBAM IAIIOTNBVBIMM3I60 RO bIMOLLNIEN
30b6RY. 3IAIMK LMBTOL 3MLILTIMBOL 3IIITM: LIGSNVNBNGISIT 3MI3NISEIM-
IR0 396LIBNL 3O3R, 066IA6IGN0 JITHBRIRI3N LIMBIdSTMBY, O3MRIGNII
LOLIMBNOL LO3JO63M 3MILOLIMIBNL 3NRIBY, 3IMJIBNL 3MIDBINRIBNL Rd JIM33NL

30R3M 39333010 I3HBI RILEMIBY. 2013 BIVL ILITN 3M3LOLIMISN0) 3MLOA3ISTI
0R33056330L MIMRIBMB53 5884 330R3N69.3L3I3LAO GN3NL LOIZNVI6MB ORINTMdM,N3
AMLOLIMBOL RI3VGI3N0N BMRENL 3NRI3VIN VY J6IAH-R3I3I3NL 3dVNMID3I3V3N
Jb63IMIBY, MIG 01930L 3b@N3 03 9RV3NV6I3NL 3AM3NL 3ODBIMDBI MBI IVMIEEIBIMN-
06M3OL BOHRNL R LO3IMIAN MO30L N3NANEHIITNDBIBNNL 3ILIIRISTMBOL IR I3L.

COMMUNITY YOUTH CENTERS OFFER LOCAL RESIDENTS REAL ASSISTANCE AND NECES-
SARY SERVICES. IN 2013, BY GETTING ACTIVELY INVOLVED IN NEW INITIATIVES, THEIR SER-
VICES OFFERED TO RESIDENTS OF 5 COMMUNITIES (15 100 INDIVIDUALS) BECAME MORE DI-
VERSE AND OF A BETTER QUALITY. NAMELY, VILLAGE RESIDENTS WERE ABLE TO: UNDERGO
CERTIFIED COMPUTER COURSES, GET UNLIMITED INTERNET ACCESS; GET SEVERAL TYPES
OF BANKING SERVICES; ATTEND FREE COOKING AND EMBROIDERING CLASSES. IN 2013, THE
NUMBER OF PEOPLE USING NEW SERVICES MADE 5 884 PERSONS. SUCH ACTIVITIES HELP LO-
CAL RESIDENTS TO GET MORE KNOWLEDGE AND DEEPEN THEIR SKILLS, WHICH, IN THEIR
TURN, INCREASE COMPETITIVENESS OF THOSE PEOPLE ON THE LABOR MARKET AND GIVE
THEM A SELF-REALIZATION OPPORTUNITY.
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improved their technical equipment and diver-
sified the services offered to the public.

It is important that community centers have
achieved financial sustainability and independ-
ence. Considering that their funding from the
program gradually diminishes, by 2013, total
budget of the community centers increased by
34% compared to 2011 (at the expense of alter-
native funding sources).

Cooperation with Local and International
Organisations Working on Community De-
velopment

In 2013, aiming to deepen horizontal rela-
tionships between community centers and or-
ganizations working on community develop-
ment, as well as for experience and information
sharing, CSRDG actively continued supporting
national and international level joint initiatives
and projects.
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In 2013, Center for Strategic Research and
Development of Georgia held a conference:
Work with Community - Foreign Experience
of Community Funds, and the Prospect of its
Development in the Caucasus Region. The con-
ference was held with financial support from
CDJ - Community development Journal.

Local organizations and foundations work-
ing on community issues and community de-
velopment, as well as Armenian and Azerbaijan
organizations from the same field, participated
in the meeting.

During the conference, CoDeCo Coalition
(union of Georgian organizations
working on community develop-
ment) presented to the participants
the Coalition mission and strategic
directions, local experience in work
with community, and the Coalition
joint publication “Work with Com-
munity and Community Develop-
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COMMUNITY FOUNDATIONS
AND ASSET BASED
DEVELOPMENT: MODELS FROM
EUROPE AND BEYOND
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SUB-PROGRAM - THE DEVELOPMENT
OF CIVIL SOCIETY ORGANISATIONS

The goal of the program is to provide acces-
sible services to promote the organisational
sustainability of village, regional and na-
tional civil society organisations.

To achieve this goal, the program strategy is,
on the one hand, the provision of information,
technical (training, consultations, etc.) and fi-
nancial resources to Georgian civil society or-
ganisations interested in social enterprise, and,
on the other hand, raising of the effectiveness
of regional and national civil society organisa-
tions by deepening the organisational develop-
ment and the skills of young managers.

The services developed by the program ex-
perts are aimed at strengthening the organi-
sation of civil society groups and improving
their financial sustainability and management
processes.

Promotion of the Development of Social
Entrepreneurship

Looking for alternative sources of funding
and using them is a pre-requisite for ensur-
ing the development and sustainability of civil
society organisations. Social entrepreneurship
is such an alternative. This, together with the
knowledge of the CSRDG expert, informed
this program and, since 2009, CSRDG has
been actively working to popularise and im-
plement social entrepreneurship in Georgia.

The micro-grants issued within the pro-
gram, as well as the training and consultation
events, were aimed at strengthening the civil
society organisations, as well as the improve-
ment of the organisations’ financial sustain-
ability and management processes. As for in-
formation support, this was provided by the
web-portal, electronic information bulletins
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and social networks.
Informational-Analytical Web-Portal

Since 2010, an informational-analytical web-
portal www.cse.ge has been operating within
the program. The portal is dedicated to social
entrepreneurship issues. Any interested person
is able to get extensive and relevant information
on theoretical and practical issues related to so-
cial enterprise, such as:

o The concept of social entrepreneurship, its
forms and importance;

o The legislative base in Georgia, regulating
economic activities of social enterprises and
civil society organisations;

» Research and practical examples on social
entrepreneurship issues;

+ Opportunities for funding social enterprises;

 Information on Georgian social enterprises
and the products produced by them;

o Thematic/useful links.

The web-portal also carries information on
the services developed by program experts: the-
matic training and consultations and an elec-
tronic journal on social entrepreneurship. In-
terested persons can ask questions about issues
which are important to them as well as provide
comments and recommendations regarding the
work of the web-portal.

A quarterly journal on social entrepreneur-
ship is sent to organisations interested in the
issue. It presents the recent activities under-
taken in Georgia on this issue. The journal
presents the various initiatives of Foundations
operating in Georgia, as well as case studies
of successful social enterprises in Georgia and
internationally. In the “News” section, those in-
terested receive information on grant competi-
tions, planned training, presentations and other
events. An electronic, constantly updated, data-
base has been created for the distribution of the
journal and currently consists of 317 organisa-
tions.
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In addition, to popularize the concept of so-
cial entrepreneurship, a special page on social
enterprise has been created on Facebook. As
with the web-portal, the page contains infor-
mation on the new initiatives and current news
in this field. The page is an additional means
for distributing information on social entrepre-
neurship.

Training on Social Entrepreneurship
Issues

In 2013, the 2 training courses and 5 semi-
nars on social entrepreneurship held in Tbilisi
and regions were attended by 168 participants.

The trainers/consultants in social enterprise
developed three types of training:

« Introductory course to social entrepreneur-
ship - covering the general concepts of so-
cial entrepreneurship, its forms and role in
the civil society;

» Development of business plans for a social
enterprise — is dedicated to social enterprise
organisational and financial management,
marketing and taxation issues;

« Planning and evaluation of social and busi-
ness goals — helps social enterprises to better
analyse the balance between the social and
economic goals of their activities, and evalu-
ate social impacts.

Micro-grants for the Development of So-
cial Entrepreneurship

In order to improve the financial sustainabil-
ity of civil society organisations and to develop
social enterprise, the Program issues micro-
grants to those organisations which are already
engaged in economic activity or are willing to
start social businesses.
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In 2013, the program was working on
strengthening the 6 social enterprises funded
under the previous year competition.

Social enterprise Green House - was estab-
lished by the union “Disabled Child, Family,
Society”. A green house growing lettuce is ar-
ranged on 200 square meter area. At the initial
stage, the production volume was 250 kilo-
grams of lettuce, and, after selling it, the enter-
prise made just 100 GEL profit. The figures are
quite modest, however, any newlyestablished
enterprise needs a starting period after which
(provided there is a correct management), the
volume of the productions, as well as income
made after selling it, increase.

Compared to the initial economic impor-
tance of the enterprise Green House, the social
goals achieved by it are farmore important.
Three persons with disabilities, former pupils
of the orphanage, are permanently employed
in the enterprise. Besides, the green house also
has an educational function. A social enterprise
is opened at the basis of the green house, where
beneficiaries of the organisation daycare center
for people with disabilities aquire tehoretical
and practical skills in the field of gardening. In
2013, the mentioned course was attended by 20
people with disabilities, and this will help them
in their further employment.

Sewing Enterprise — was established by
“Samtskhe-Javakheti Society Democrat Wom-
en”. The organisation is working in physical and
psychological health of Samtskhe-Javakheti
women.

The enterprise makes women clothing. The
enterprise gives jobs to 3 female victims of do-
mestic violence, and the district administrative
unit employe 13 persons of the same group.
They all make income.

Development of bee-keeping - is a project
idea a civil society organization “Leli” At the
initial stage of its operations, the enterprise
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produced 150 kilograms of honey, which gen-
erated 500 GEL income. Besides, enterprise
workers taught 7 young persons theoretical
basics and practical skills of bee-keeping. As a
result, four young individuals started their own
honey production.

Social goal of the enterprise is important. In
particular, financial revenue made from selling
the product is used for local community devel-
opment, namely - for informal education of
community residents and teaching them vari-
ous practical skills.

Cafe Doctors’ House - was established by
“International Association for Assistance to
Children with Leucosis” which is working in
the field of providing social and psychological
assistance to leucosis patient children and their
family members, tries to make treatment acces-
sible form them, takes care about their educa-
tion and employment,
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On the territory adjacent to one of the Tbili-
si children hospitals, the organization arranged
and put to operation 250 square meter hotel
type Parents’ House. It is designated for pa-
tients travelling from the regions, who under-
go a long-term treatment in onco-hematology
department, and their family members. This is
the only facility in Georgia of this type.

Social enterprise Café Doctors House is
mostly oriented towards medical personnel,
respectively, its menu and service is tailored to
their requirements.

There are 2 people employed in the café. Its
social goal is to use the generated income for
the mobilization of necessary funds form sus-
tainable operation of Parents’ House.

Social café Kedeli - was established in
Sighnaghi by a civil society organization
“Counselling Union-Community Kedeli of the
Socially Unprotected Population of Sighnaghi
Region”. The main goal of the organization is
social integration of people with disabilities,
revealing of their skills in labor-therapeutical
enterprises. Their self-realization.

Café Kedeli is the first social café established
in Georgia. Art evenings are being held here.
It is also possible to organize events dedicated
various festivity occasions. Delivery service is
also offered. A special Face-book page of the
café was also created. The goal of the social
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enterprise is employment of people with dis-
abilities and their integration in the society. At
present, four persons with disabilities are em-
ployed in the café.

Nursery enterprise was founded by foun-
dation “Abkhazinterkont”. This civil society or-
ganisation is working for the promotion of sus-
tainable development of small and medium size
farms, improvement of social and economic
conditions of internally displaced persons and
socially vulnerable populatioin, and protection
of the rights of marginalised groups of society.

The goal of the social enterprise is employ-
ment of socially vulnerable people, teaching
them specifics of workingin green houses, and
making green houses for them from the income
generated from the farm. These will help social-
economic intergation of the mentioned groups
of people and improve theior living conditions.
At the beginning stage, a greenhouse was ar-
ranged on 200 square meter area. It started suc-
cessful operation and, at present, four benefi-
ciaries of the organisation are employed in the

35bobg  BoMEgds 3Mad@ogmmo 8g(390069-

greenhouse.
mdgdo.

©33M0) ROAMOIBRNRN J3IWY LYBIAAML LMGBNITIAMN RIG30A0I3d IR3MIdIGMI-
M3L IAHM3NL 39BIMDBI RIBIV(N 3ME3IAIEGIV6IMNO6M3NL 3IMBI dRI3NS6I30L
R3bLYIII3d3(N, 3IAIMR: 3IHBRIRITN 3ILOITI3XMSOL 3IMBEI ORVINV6I3N, MXILIM()
dORORMA3NL ILBLIIM3ITN JORN3OEMEIBN, 33333010 LOBRIBNL JMVNXN QLY BAHRIVJ-
30, RII6NTI3N, bI63AMITNIOR ROIJLOIFIBINN YRVINV6I30N. LMNGBNITIM LOEIMIMIS-
30 RILOIZI3D RY3MOIBRNT dRI3NV601d X3IVIdL LO3IJMOAN 3IAMLOZTOL 3NRI3NLY
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RIbLOIII3NL 3I6L BAEXRNL.

THE MEANING OF ALL ABOVE LISTED SOCIAL ENTERPRISES IS TO HELP SOLVE EM-
PLOYMENT ISSUE FOR LOWLY COMPETITIVE PEOPLE ON THE LABOR MARKET. IN
PARTICULAR: PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES, DOMESTIC VIOLENCE VICTIM FEMALES,
FORMER PUPILS OF ORPHANAGES, IDP, PEOPLE WITH LONG UNEMPLOYMENT HIS-
TORY. GETTING EMPLOYMENT IN SOCIAL ENTERPRISES GIVES PEOPLE FROM THE
LISTED SEGMENTS POSSIBILITY TO MAKE INCOME AND GET INTEGRATED IN THE
SOCIETY. AT PRESENT, 33 PEOPLE ARE EMPLOYED IN THE ENTERPRISES, AND THEIR
AVERAGE DAILY INCOME IS 10-15 GEL. BESIDES, SOCIAL ENTERPRISES HOLD LEARN-
ING COURSES, WHERE THESE PEOPLE GET VARIOUS PROFESSIONAL SKILLS THAT, IN
THE FUTURE, INCREASES THEIR EMPLOYMENT CHANCES.
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Besides, in two Kutaisi schools attended by
IDP children, workers of the social enterprise
carry out training-seminars on the technolo-
gies of producing vegetable crops, and con-
siderate usage of organic waste and compost.
In addition, practical classes are held on the
greenhouse premisses.

Consultations on Social Entrepreneur-
ship Issues

CSRDG experts provided consultations on
social entrepreneurship issues specifically to
those organisations funded under the grants
competitions, as well as, more generally, to or-
ganisations interested in social entrepreneur-

ship.
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The consultations addressed various relevant
issues that had arisen from the economic activi-
ties of the organisations, such as: the prepara-
tion of a business plans, marketing, financial
management, taxation issues, etc. In 2013, con-
sultation services were provided to 11 civil soci-
ety and community based organisations.

The Promotion of Network Activities
for Social Enterprises Operating in Geor-
gia

In 2013, organized by CSRDG, the Second
Joint Meeting of Georgian Social Enterprises
was held in Tbilisi. Leaders of about 50 social
enterprises and representatives of organizations
working in the area of the development of social
enterprising participated in the meeting. Con-
sidering opinions and desires of participants of
a similar event held in the previous year, such
joint meeting turned into an annual event.

In the first half of the workshop, participants
were given possibility to get familiar with each
other’s activities and their cooperation oppor-
tunities. While the second half was dedicated
to discussion about the legislative environment
for social enterprises and related challenges.

Popularisation of the Social Entrepreneur-
ship Concept

It is known that the young people are natu-
rally characterised by: boldness, flexibility, the
transformation of innovative ideas to reality
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and energy. All these features play a very im-
portant role in a relatively newly established
idea: “social entrepreneurship”. For this reason,
in 2012 the Program put particular effort into
the popularizing of social entrepreneurship
amongst the youth and the promotion of so-
cial enterprises established by them. In par-
ticular, in 2012, The British Council, Eurasia
Partnership Foundation and Centre for Stra-
tegic Research and Development of Georgia
held a joint competition Students for Support
of Social Entrepreneurship, with 4 Tbilisi Uni-
versities taking part. The competition attracted
great interest from other Universities, so a de-
cision was made to organise simmilar events
annually.

In 2013, 4 Thilisi Universities participated
in the competition, namely: Georgian-Ameri-
can University, Caucasus University, Georgian
University, and Black Sea University.

In order to get interested students of the list-
ed Universities familiar with social enterprising
concept and activities of Georgian social enter-
prises, seminars and introductory tours to so-
cial enterprises were held. During the tour, one
social enterprise was selected for each Univer-
sity. The inner-University contest assignment
given to the students was related to solving the
problem outlined by the enterprise. Their task
was to prepare a project directed towards solv-
ing the problem of the social enterprise. Inner-
University contests were held in each Universi-
ty. Out of those, a special jury selected the best
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proposals, and projects of the winning teams
were funded. Afterwards, in close cooperation
with the social enterprise and with consultative
assistance provided by CSRDG expert, the stu-
dents were given possibility to implement the
project plan into the practice.

In the beginning of 2014, a summarizing
inter-University contest — Students in Support
of Social Entrepreneurship 2013 - will be held,
where the best implemented project will be
identified and winner the implementing team
will be given award.

The Promotion of Organisational Devel-
opment for Civil Society Organisations

2014 Bemob obobyobdo Ro@ommgds dgds-
®33989m0 9960396ML0Bg@MI3mEMabo 3mb n&-
Lo - “bEMEgb&gdo bmnsma@o 8g6s68gmdob
bomosbaggmor 2013” , Hm3gmbgi asdmg-

mobegds bayzgmgbme dgbEmmadamo 3Gm-
99480 o dabo gobdsbmm(zngmgdgma aodom-

%3900 39b@0 oRNmEMZgdS.

CSRDG experts and a group of consultants
on organisational development offer tailored
training modules and individual consultations
on various levels and themes on management
and organisational development issues.

3MB3TMLAN - “LEIRIEGI3N LMBNIRIMN 3I63»3IMBNL ILIGRILIFIMIR 2013” -
3aMBO6NTIMBS 3NORM 140-30 LG IRIEB3Y, 9JIRI6 12 LEIRIEGN IMLITNLIMSMHN3 LOB-
JOLIBBI OIENTVAIR RIIAOIM 3LMBNIRIGHN LOBIAIML 3VH3IGN63ITN 34M3TIIISNL
3M3396»J3930. LGIRIEGIBNL 30I6 3IFI3I3I3IR(N 34MITIGI3NL 3d6MHBNITISNL
LOBINL IGI3BI RIGIMIBINZD JVA3IGN63TRNIY QMENLJINIBI33D 3063IN3I 0133J8-
30 396K LMBNIRIAHN LOBIMIMISNL 33JNR3ISN RO IMISV60 RY3IGI3N0IN 3MA3I-
39 10%-R396 20%-3RJ. 3603363 M35609,5M3 LOGIMIMIBNRI6 INRIBSITN 3IAMLI3ITN
3MbL3IGRY 3001 3363BNGBNYMIBL, MMINIBNG I@NO6 JTDBRIRITN 3ILOINISTM3NL
3dM6JI 306330 RO TIN3IANN0) ROO3IRISITN 35333330 R 35010 33M3TR 0.

140 STUDENTS PARTICIPATED IN THE COMPETITION - STUDENTS IN SUPPORT OF SOCIAL
ENTREPRENEURSHIP 2013. OUT OF THOSE, 12 STUDENTS VOLUNTEERED TO GET ACTIVELY
INVOLVED IN SOLVING MARKETING PROBLEMS OF THREE SOCIAL ENTERPRISES. MARKET-
ING MEASURES UNDERTAKEN BY THE STUDENTS ON THE INITIAL STAGE OF THE PROJECTS
DEVELOPED BY THEM INCREASED SALES OF THE SOCIAL ENTERPRISES ALREADY IN THE
VERY FIRST MONTHS AND GENERATED 10% TO 20% ADDITIONAL PROFIT. IT IS IMPORTANT,
THAT THE INCOME RECEIVED FROM THE ENTERPRISES WAS SPENT ON THEIR BENEFICIAR-
IES - PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES, AND LEUKEMIA PATIENT CHILDREN AND THEIR PARENTS.
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TRADITIONALLY, AT THE END OF THE YEAR, A STUDY WAS CARRIED OUT TO EVAL-
UATE EFFECTIVENESS OF SERVICES PROVIDED BY CSRDG. THE STUDY SHOWED THAT
86% OF THE RESPONDENTS APPLY RECEIVED KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS IN PRACTICE.
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PROGRAM - THE PROMOTION OF
GOOD GOVERNANCE

The goal of the program is to improve govern-
ance at the national and local levels, as well
as to ensure the government gives more ef-
fective consideration to the population needs
and real problems.

The strategy has been developed by the Pro-
gram experts based on CSRDG research activ-
ity, drawing on the experience of working with
legislative and government bodies. The strategy
involves an analysis of the policies of govern-
ment agencies, their public discussion and
monitoring.

The program covers both the national, as
well as local levels and is implemented through
two main sub-programs: Research and Promo-
tion of Reforms; the Development of the Self-
Governance.

SUB-PROGRAM - DEVELOPMENT OF
THE SELF-GOVERNANCE

The goal of the program is to promote trans-
parency in the local budgeting process in 5
municipalities, and achieve maximum con-
sideration of the needs of local residents in the
budgeting programs.

Net work activity- monitoring of self-gov-
erned entities

Monitoring of self-governed entities is car-
ried out in Telavi, Lagodekhi, Sighnaghi, Ozur-
geti and Chokhatauri. In order to achieve its
objectives, the program strategy is to monitor
compliance with the norms and transparency
requirements of the budgeting process in the
above municipalities envisaged by the legisla-
tion. The program activities are delivered by
the Civil Monitoring Network, consisting of the
Centre for Strategic Research and Development
of Georgia, the Georgian Association for Civil
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Development (Kakheti) and the Union for the
Democratic Development of Georgia (Guria).
In Telavi, program activities are carried out by
CSRDGs Telavi Bureau.

In the second half of 2013, geographic cover-
age of the target municipalities expanded and
6 new municipalities were added to 5 previous
ones. In particular, the new municipalities are:
in Kakheti - Kvareli and Sagarejo, in Samegrelo
- Abasha, Martvili, Senaki and Khobi.

Transparency and accountability - accom-
plishments

In terms of monitoring the transparency and
accountability of self-governed units, the Civil
Monitoring Network (based on Georgian legis-
lation and considering good governance prin-
ciples) developed 16 special criteria for Sakre-
bulo (local council) transparency. In 2012, the
program carried out monitoring on 8 of these
criteria, namely:

o The availability of public councils at the mu-
nicipality Sakrebulos;

o The number of public discussions held on
those issues especially important to the pub-
lic;

« The organising of external/public sessions by
representatives of municipalities;

« The provision of timely information sharing
for the public on scheduled sessions of the
representative body;

« The provision of timely information sharing
for the public on the commissions of the rep-
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LO3AMIVTOIM 3MBNSEMENEINL JLITOL 306 0IIWI30L, WI3MKRILAL, LOKEIROL, MDBIA3INNLY RO
RMbLIGIIANL 3I6NGBN3ITNEISISNL 303F3NAIITMBNLY RO 96396ANI3VTRISITISNL bIGNLLAOL 30 %D-
AR0OL 3096001, 2013 BINL 3d6LMHBNITNISITN LOIZNV6M3I3NL 3IRIBOR, 3INIRI3d 3d53MNIML 333-
®RJ30:
* LY3N%6I 3I6NBN3ITNGIGISAN 3IIIXMBILRD LIXIMM 396LNRIISNL MAHB3I6NDBISY 3603363 M3V6

39RH6I3IBNTI3I3DIJ;

3603363M369X 3I3BNAHRY LO3MISITML MN3306AIII LERXMIISNL RILOYSTNI3NL 3964 I3I RIGIMIBNL
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39703XM3ILRY 6363MIVIR3IELTMBNAN MEHE3I6MISNL HN3396I3I LRMBIBNL RIGIMISNL 3G MBIRIEMI-

0L RIG3NL IR3IMIIAIMBY;

J3IRV LOINDH6JI 3T6NGNIITNGIGAN 3MIBIM 2012 BRNOL 3NIXRIGNL 3ILEHIRIBNL RO 2014 BRNOL 3NIXRI-

G0L 3GMIIENL LOXIEM 3d6LNTI IS

dRLY6N3693N0), MM3 MI3MRIENZI II6NBNIIRNGIGZ AMOIBIM LOIXIAM 3O6LNT3D 3NIXIG3N 3ALOGI6

G3NRI3I3DI, MG 3dO3RI 6B I, 01 3I6NBN3INNGIGAN 36 3MILRIMD.

FROM THE ACTIVITIES CARRIED OUT BY THE CIVIL MONITORING NETWORK IN 2013 IN TELAVI], LAGODEKHI,
SIGHNAGHI, OZURGETI AND CHOKHATAURI MUNICIPALITIES TO INCREASE THE LEVEL OF TRANSPARENCY
AND ACCOUNTABILITY, THE FOLLOWING CAN BE MARKED OUT:

IN THE TARGET MUNICIPALITIES, ORGANISATION OF PUBLIC HEARINGS ON IMPORTANT DECISIONS WAS
IMPROVED;

NUMBER OF CASES OF HOLDING SAKREBULO SPECIAL SESSIONS WITHOUT A JUSTIFICATION WAS DECLINED
CONSIDERABLY;

ESTABLISHED PROCEDURES OF DEVELOPING, APPROVING AND PUBLISHING SPECIAL NORMATIVE ACTS
WERE FOLLOWED;

ALL MUNICIPALITIES REFINED AND IMPROVED INFORMATIVE CONTENTS OF THEIR WEB-SITES;

SITUATION ON COMPLYING WITH PROCEDURES ABOUT HOLDING SPECIAL SESSIONS OF THE REPRESENTA-
TIVE ORGAN WAS IMPROVED;

PUBLIC HEARINGS ON THE COMPLETION OF 2012 BUDGETS AND ON 2014 DRAFT BUDGETS WERE HELD IN
ALL TARGET MUNICIPALITIES;

IT SHOULD BE NOTED THAT SEVERAL MUNICIPALITIES HELD PUBLIC HEARINGS ON THE AMENDMENTS TO
BE MADE TO THE BUDGETS - THIS HAD NEVER BEEN PRACTICED BEFORE IN ANY OF THE MUNICIPALITIES.
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A package of recommendations, as well as
action plans to ensure their implementation,
was developed for each target municipality.
Together with media activities, these packages
included consultation and coordination meet-
ings with representatives from local authorities;
the engagement of the Network experts in the
work of the Sakrebulos and their committees;
the mobilisation of community based organisa-
tions, etc.

Monitoring the budgetary process

In 2013 as well, the Program continued
budgetary monitoring of the following areas in
the target municipalities:

o A review of the existing situation with regard
to keeping to the due timelines and proce-
dures of the budgetary process;

« Documentary and field monitoring of the lo-
cal budget programs;

o Analysis of the approved budget;

« Evaluation of the quarterly and annual com-
pletions of the budgets.
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RoEB0mgd0l (3040l dmbogmaban, bmee  1his relates to the formation of the budget of
3gmg b0z spaommdmogo bsmgdm (396@@g- 2 self-governed unit, its approval, completion
b0 m3omme RsgMmbgb bbgbgdmem 3mzgLbda. and reporting. Throughout the year, Network

experts were monitoring compliance with these

The budget code defines the timelines and

36M36930L LOY3NDHEI 8 3IENGBNIITNGISNL (306IMAN: MITO3N, LO3IGIRM, I3XGIVN, TO3M-
RIbN RO LO3IIGITMBN: 93939, IVMG3NTN, LIBISN, bM3N) 26 LIVIVIN 3d6LMOHBNITRY 33T J-
39, AMITOL 3IRIBOX INRI3ITN 3MEIBIFI3NL LOBIIZINDHI 3MIBOKRYD 01001MIIX0 LMVXOL
36MBOT0 (LIX 26 3GMBOTN), LORKIB IRBIMNTNY YALIBINN 3AHMITIZIGNIY, MILIMLIBN RO
3MLILKIMBOL BIRK3S 01I3NL 396300196 I3NL 3MGIEGBNIRMO6 RI393306»I3NA). RIIMOASTNX 3T-
606030 NGI&I330N 3MIFIRN LMBEOL LO0IIAM BIEEGAIBNL BIMIMIOR3IETI3N 3MEIBNTIMIR-
636 0RINTM36030 30IXIGIBNL 3366N3I330N, LORKIB BIMIRKINEIL BIIMLLIEISIR(N 33TI3NA)
353M3TI6NTN 336LO3IMEISN0) 363533 3MM3TIFISN. 3ILYBOINLIR 51 36GMBRINL 3MLO33d6I-
3R LYFNMM 01566OL BIBNTN YR3NTM3AN33d 0130013396»013ITM3I33d 3d53MIM 2013 EXOL
30IXRIGI330 (6RN0L 3MML 30IXIBGI33() 3I3NRD B3NNV I3I3N), MM RI696AKRIGN 0196LS 3501-
3020LEN6IBI NIM 2014 BROL 30IXIGIB3(). dJIRV6 393MIRNEIMI, 3MM3AIINL JTLIIHBI3NL
R LY01I3M BIESEAISNL dOTNLE3IZNL 3IRIBOR 396IMOL R LOZI3AITML 8 3IENBNIITNGISNL
0130013356013IM33339 353MI3IL 515 285 WIMNOL MRIGMBNOL 0106bY, AMITN0OEG 3M3306-RIdY 26
013330 3BbM3©I30 399 092 SRJ3NV6NL 51 LOFNE3MEHMSM LO3NLA, 3IGIMR: 3NRD 3HI3NL 3I3I0)-
339, 3IRN6IANL XIB3NAIBNL 333036@IBY, LOLAITN BINL LOLAGI3I3NL 33330133), JOXMS 3Ib3I-
R&»J30L ORINTISNL 3MBIMBY, 396»3I3NL RO L33IAISNL 3MBIMBY, 63330L 3MEBEIN6IMIBNL RS-
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3M6&IIN, LOKMILGIIM LOLGIZIBNL 3dY396D, LMBRI3LY RO JOTVII3L IMANL 3MLOLLIMBNOL I3-
AM3RI3M 30RIIRINTIBNLAIBNL LOIGGIELIMEHSM LO3IJITISI3NL 333MIMAB R 30010 3IRHIRNS-
0<JI30L 33664N3NL 3IR3I6Y.

A STUDY WAS CARRIED OUT IN 26 VILLAGES OF THE PROGRAM 8 TARGET MUNICIPALITIES
(IN KAKHETI: TELAVI, SAGAREJO, KVARELI, LAGODEKHI, AND IN SAMEGRELO: ABASHA, MAR-
TVILI, SENAKI, KHOBI), AND, BASED ON THE OBTAINED RESULTS, PROFILES FOR EACH VILLAGE
WERE PREPARED (A TOTAL OF 26 PROFILES), DESCRIBING EXISTING PROBLEMS, RESOURCES,
AND PUBLIC VISION REGARDING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL. IN THE LISTED MU-
NICIPALITIES, REPRESENTATIVES OF THE VILLAGE COMMUNITY CENTRES TOOK PART IN THE
DISCUSSIONS OF LOCAL BUDGETS, WHERE THEY PRESENTED ESPECIALLY ACUTE PROBLEMS
IDENTIFIED BY THE ABOVE MENTIONED STUDY. RESPECTIVELY, IN THE 2013 BUDGETS, LO-
CAL SELF-GOVERNMENTS ALLOCATED A PART OF FUNDS NECESSARY TO SOLVE 51 PROBLEMS
(CHANGES WERE MADE TO THE BUDGETS IN THE END OF THE YEAR), AND THE REMAINING
FUNDS WERE ALLOCATED IN THE 2014 BUDGETS. SO, AS A RESULT OF THE EFFORTS TAKEN BY
THE PROGRAM EXPERTS AND COMMUNITY CENTRES, SELF-GOVERNMENTS OF EIGHT MUNICI-
PALITIES IN KAKHETI AND SAMEGRELO ALLOCATED GEL 515 285, THAT WILL SOLVE 51 PROB-
LEMS FOR 399 092 RESIDENTS OF THOSE 26 COMMUNITIES, IN PARTICULAR: REPAIR OF INNER
ROADS, REINFORCEMENT OF RIVER EMBANKMENTS, REPAIR OF DRINKING WATER SYSTEMS;
ARRANGEMENT OF MEETING PLACES FOR WOMEN, ARRANGEMENT OF PARKS AND SQUARES,
INSTALLATION OF GARBAGE BINS, CLEANING OF SPONTANEOUS LANDFILLS, INSTALLATION
OF STREET LIGHTS, BUILDING OF DRAINAGE SYSTEMS, PROVISION OF TRANSPORT FOR THE
RESIDENTS FOR EASY GETTING AROUND BETWEEN TOWNS AND VILLAGES AND MAKING THE
TRANSPORT TIMETABLE.
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timelines and processes.

It should be noted that, compared to the pre-
vious years, the situation regarding compliance
with the budget timelines in the target munici-
palities has improved. However, a number of
procedures still need improvement. Recom-
mendations on this issue were prepared by Net-
work experts and submitted to the target mu-
nicipalities. These recommendations addressed
the following topics: the publication of the draft
budget; the improvement of the budget appli-
cation forms; the quality of information and
structure of the budget completion report.

Program experts, together with representa-
tives of community centres and initiative
groups, were observing the 2014 budget plan-
ning process. In particular, on the one hand,
monitoring of the budget formation cycle was
being carried out, and, on the other hand, local
community centres got directly involved in the
mentioned process.

Documentary and Field Monitoring of the
Local Budget Programs

At the beginning of the year, the areas where
ongoing monitoring programs are particularly
important and prioritised were determined - in
particular, in 2013, monitoring of the existing
conditions in the Rural Development Program,
social programs, and municipal kindergartens
was carried out.

To conduct documentary monitoring, Net-
work experts requested public information and
other related documents about kindergartens.
The following issues were closely studied and
analysed:

o Contracts made with the parents;

 Education programs and standards;

« Catering arrangements for children;

o Finances;

o The available toys (amount and condition);

o The number of children and the total space
available for each child;

» Working hours;
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AS A RESULT OF THE CONDUCTED MONITORING:

A SPECIAL COMMISSION TO STUDY KINDERGARTEN PROBLEMS WAS SET UP IN LAGODEKHI;

THE CASE OF POOR QUALITY MEAT PRODUCTS DELIVERED TO KINDERGARTENS IN OZURGETY CAME TO
PUBLICITY. RESPECTIVELY, THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT BECAME FORCED TO INVESTIGATE THE MENTIONED
FACT, THOSE GUILTY WERE PUNISHED, AND, IN ORDER TO AVOID SIMILAR CASES IN THE FUTURE, THE GOV-
ERNMENT TOOK RESPECTIVE PREVENTIVE MEASURES;

BASED ON THE RECOMMENDATIONS DEVELOPED BY THE PROGRAM EXPERTS FOR THE SELF-GOVERN-
MENTS, LAGODEKHI TARGET MUNICIPALITY INCREASED FUNDING FOR KINDERGARTENS FROM THE LOCAL
BUDGET BY GEL 300 000. AS A RESULT, CONDITIONS IN THE KINDERGARTENS IMPROVED AND THE NUMBER
OF THE KONTINGENT INCREASED. THIS SPECIFIC CHANGE IN THE MUNICIPAL BUDGET IMPROVED QUAL-
ITY OF LIFE OF MORE THAN 50% RESIDENTS OF THE TARGET MUNICIPALITY (POPULATION OF LAGODEKHI
MUNICIPALITY IS 52 502 PEOPLE).
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3653530 Jg@sbomo (33momgdgdol JgbBoges toring on the ground. As a result of analysing
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3M3M333IN0 N6VBMA3IBNAL 363NBAL LOVIIZIINDBI 3MM3AI3NL ITL3IMGI33d 3INFTJJO3IL MI-
3M3JI6KRIGNIBNL 303360, AMIINNGB 656IRK3NE6D LMNBXNL 336300106I30L 36GM3AIINL 3ILAHITISODI
39LIBNL3BIBIT LOLIKIENBM IV6IIBIL, 3IAIMRX HIBNMEBITIMHN 3063001964 I3NLY RS N6VBAMILGMHIJ-
&IMOL LOY3NBALEMML. LO3NENLEMM3 I3MIIERIBNIBNL IJ3IGILMSd 3MNBMBEY KD LOIIMOIZILML
J3I2 3I606039NGIBGL 3MLOILM3S 35010 3303ITNLENEIBY, HIG LI3MIMM XO33N 3MHBNGENIHIR
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BASED ON ANALYSING THE OBTAINED INFORMATION, PROGRAM EXPERTS DEVELOPED A PACKAGE OF
RECOMMENDATIONS THAT WAS PRESENTED TO THE RESPONSIBLE STATE AGENCY FOR THE COMPLETION OF
RURAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM - NAMELY, TO THE MINISTRY OF REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND INFRA-
STRUCTURE. THE MINISTRY LIKED MOST OF THE RECOMMENDATIONS AND REQUESTED ALL GEORGIAN MU-
NICIPALITIES TO CONSIDER THEM, WHICH WILL EVENTUALLY MAKE A POSITIVE IMPACT ON THE PURPOSE-
FULNESS, ADEQUACY AND PUBLICITY OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT OF THE PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED IN THE
VILLAGES.
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tions was developed for each municipality ad-
dressing the improvement of operations of pre-
school facilities.

Program experts requested and studied pub-
lic information and documentation regard-
ing the Rural Development Program. The new
Rural Development Program started in 2013,
so studying and monitoring of the changes in-
troduced in the new program was interesting.
Accordingly, the following issues were studied
and analysed:

o Schedule of meetings with program benefi-
ciaries and their completion;

» Works planned by the program, their timing
and the extent of their accomplishment.

Besides, for the sake of carrying out field
monitoring of the Rural Development Program,
Network experts held trainings for Community
Youth Centers operating in the target munici-
palities, where they presented the methodology
of rural residents opinion survey in the target
municipalities. The survey was to evaluate the
levels of public awareness about the Program
and their satisfaction with the effectiveness of
its implementation. In the second half of 2013,
with the assistance from community centers, a
survey of the mentioned program target groups
was carried out. In order to eliminate the short-
comings revealed by the survey, recommenda-
tions were developed for each municipality, and
their implementation is being monitored by the
mentioned community youth centers.

Recommendations developed by Network
experts, based on the analysis of the ongoing
budgetary processes in the target municipali-
ties in 2013, related to the following issues:

o Prioritizing the documents;

« Refining of social assistance programs;

» Appropriateness of specific social assistance
programs;

« Refining of budget application forms;

« Informativeness and structure of the budget
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AS A RESULT OF TAKING THE LISTED RECOMMENDATIONS INTO ACCOUNT:

e BUDGET APPLICATION FORM HAS IMPROVED IN LAGODEKHI AND CHOKHATAURI MUNICIPALITIES;

o IN ALL TARGET MUNICIPALITIES, FUNDING OF INFRASTRUCTURAL PROJECTS HAS INCREASED AS A RE-
SULT OF CUTTING BACK ON ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES;

o PUBLIC MEETINGS HELD WITH PROCEDURAL VIOLATIONS IN LAGODEKHI AND TELAVI MUNICIPALI-
TIES HAVE BEEN TERMINATED;

o ALSO, SEE RESULTS DESCRIBED ON PAGES 59 AND 61.
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In 2013, documentary and field monitoring
of the social programs was continued in the tar-
get municipalities. Also, monitoring of comple-
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tion of the recommendations developed by the
Network experts based on the 2011 monitoring
results was carried out.

Despite the achieved positive results with
regards to the implementation of social pro-
grams, common problems of the current social
programs, as well as separate cases of violations,
were again marked out. For avoiding their re-
occurrence in the future, the mentioned cases
were discussed with representatives of the mu-
nicipalities. Based on the the social program
monitoring results, the Network experts devel-
oped packages of recommendations for all five
target municipalities.

Besides, for raising public awareness about
the social programs, the Network experts pre-
pared a list of social assistance programs that
are underway in the target municipalities, pro-
viding easy to understand explanations on the
following issues: the program target groups,
procedures to be taken for being included in
the program, etc. The mentioned information
was disseminated among the population by
means of community youth centres.

Quarterly and Annual Evaluation of the
Budget Completion

During the year, an analysis of the munici-
pal budget quarterly and annual completion re-
ports was carried out in the target municipali-
ties and analytical documents were prepared
for each. These evaluations contained expert
analysis and advice. Full versions of the docu-
ments are available on CSRDG web-site www.
csrdg.ge.

Public Engagement in the Budgetary Pro-
cesses

The Network experts prepared a simplified
version of the approved 2013 budgets in the
target municipalities. Presentations about this
document were held for stakeholders in La-
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godekhi (Kakheti) and Ozurgeti (Guria). Dur-
ing the presentations, the experts addressed the
flaws revealed as a result of the analysis of 2012-
2013 budgetary processes in the target munici-
palities, as well as weaknesses (identified by the
monitoring) in the transparency of the munici-
pality activities. In addition, the flaws that had
been identified in the previous years were cor-
rected during 2013 by means of joint work with
the municipalities were discussed.

The presentations were attended by high
ranking officials from the local government,
representatives of the local media, civil society
organisations and CSRDG experts. The results
of the monitoring were widely covered by the
national and local media sources.
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SUB-PROGRAM -
RESEARCH AND PROMOTION OF
REFORMS

The goal of the program is to hold public
discussions on, and evaluations of, State
policy relevant to the wider society, and
promote consideration of the role of various
sections of the public in the decision making
process.

Research, analysis and the implementation
of interested advocacy campaigns is the cor-
ner stone of the CSRDG approach. It is imple-
mented by our experts, as well as other highly
qualified specialists. The research and reforms
promotion program involves not only research
activity about specific issues, but also ensuring
their public discussion by means of CSRDG
regular publications, the organisation of stake-
holder meetings and seminars. Expert recom-
mendations about each topic are then submitted
to the relevant bodies. In addition, monitoring
of their implementation and media coverage of
the results achieved also take place.

In 2013, after analysis of the environment,
several priority areas were selected within the
program, in particular: fiscal decentralisation;
financial organisations and loan issuing proce-
dures; customers rights. Issues in the listed ar-
eas were selected according to the following cri-
teria: their relevance, sharpness; and expressed
interest from the public and area experts. Stud-
ies were carried out on the identified issues, and
interest advocating campaigns were held.

Governance decentralisation

Centre for Strategic Research and Develop-
ment of Georgia is actively working to elimi-
nate the factors impeding the increase of fiscal
decentralisation level of the Georgian self-gov-
erned entities. With this respect, a study - Fis-
cal Decentralisation Trends in Georgia - carried
out by CSRDG experts in 2013, is interesting.
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The study addresses the following issues: local
finances and their importance for the develop-
ment of local self-governance; legislative review
with regards to local finances; budget revenues
of local self-governed entities and their distri-
bution; transfer policy; taxes, fees and expens-
es; the level of fiscal decentralisation in Georgia
by international indexes; international experi-
ence of fiscal decentralisation on the example
of the Baltic states.

The study showed that the level of fiscal de-
centralisation in Georgia is very low. 70-95% of
municipal budgets are filled by transfers from
the central budget. At the same time, per capita
distribution of budget revenues on the munici-
pal budget level is also low, ranging between
170-200 GEL (unlike the Baltic States, where
this indicator is about 3 000 GEL). Naturally,
in these conditions, even the thought about
the development of local self-governance is too
much, and, accordingly, CSRDG experts be-
lieve that local self-governance reform planned
in the country should necessarily contain fis-
cal decentralisation component. Without this,
implementation of the self-governance idea is
practically impossible.

Financial Organisations and Loan Issuing
Procedures

In 2013, a special study was dedicated to the
opportunities of municipalities to seek fund-
ing from financial institutions. In particular,
the study addresses the following: commercial
banks and micro-finance organisations operat-
ing in Georgia, procedures for getting loans by
start-up businesses, expenses of the loan, risks
associated with taking a loan, positive and neg-
ative sides of getting a loan, etc.

The mentioned study can be used as a practi-
cal guide by start-up businesses, or those that
are willing to expand their already operating
businesses or find new markets.
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Customer Rights Protection

In 2013, program experts were working both
on the promotion of adequately expressed cus-
tomer rights in Georgian legislation as well as
identifying, and responding to, specific cases of
customer rights violations.

In 2013, CSRDG expert published a cycle
of analytical articles dedicated to current de-
mands in food safety area and their completion
methods. In particular, the articles addressed
the following issues: EU main law on food,
its origin history, contents and main accents;
food hygiene, implying to the whole range of
actions during food distribution-production-
consumption cycles that ensure food safety and
its appropriateness for human consumption.

We would like to remind here that in 2011,
the Government submitted a package of laws
to the Parliament, and, as a result, the law on
customer rights protection was annulled in
2012. In the “Code for Product Safety and Free
Circulation” adopted instead, only a part of
customers rights was kept, resulting in serious
limitation of customers rights in Georgia. In
order to discuss the mentioned problems and
find a solution, CSRDG experts had meetings
with heads of several committees of the new-
ly elected Government. As a result, led by the
Parliament Committee for Euro Integration,
a process of developing a new law has started.
Since the beginning of 2013, the Euro-Integra-
tion Committee created a work group where
CSRDG experts were actively involved in. The
group was working during 10 months on the
development of the new law. There was a lot
of discussion, argument, even confrontation.
By December 2013, the version of the law was
drafted, which the group considered to be ap-
propriate for public discussion. On December
3, 2013, presentation of the draft law was held
at the public meeting. Ratification of the law is
planned for 2014.

In 2013, CSRDG continued highlighting
customer rights violations, and requesting their
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elimination by sending open letters to the re-
spective business/companies and the National
Agency on Food Safety. As a result of these ac-
tivities, more than one third of the violations
identified have been corrected.

To identify customer rights violations, the
food safety hotline continued operating, where
citizens could submit their complaints. In addi-
tion, complains could be sent to a special Face-
book page and to the thematic web-portal www.

momxmarebeli.ge . The complaints received
were verified in the following way: an expert
purchased the product identified by the cus-
tomer in the indicated store. It was then tested,
based on the nature of the complaint, in various
accredited laboratories. The inspection was car-
ried out both in terms of product safety and la-
belling violations. All results were published in
articles on the above website and disseminated
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by the Facebook page. Written information on
the violations found were sent to the producer
(in some cases, those were stores, and in others,
producers) and the National Agency for Food
Safety. In cases where the producer or the store
disagreed with results of the inspection under-
taken by CSRDG they were able to publish their
information on the same website to prove oth-
erwise. As a result of CSRDG activities, up to
119 types of products were tested in 2013, out
of which, violations were found in 41 of them.
It should be noted that the CSRDG created
web-portal - www.momxmarebeli.ge - has
gained customers’” high interest and trust, be-
cause it has an important educational-informa-
tive meaning. The portal presents information
on various topics of interest to customers, in
particular: how to select food products; what to
do if an inadequate product is purchased; what
is the store required to do in response; what re-
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quirements are there for food products; what
normative acts regulate certain areas of food
hygiene etc. In addition, web-portal users can
exchange information about service quality
or injustice they have encountered in various
fields. The number of visitors per day, ranging
from 400 to 2000, indicate to popularity and
trustworthiness of the web-site.

Further, using the Facebook page or the
phone, customers can send question or re-
quests for consultations, and receive feedback
from a CSRDG consultant.

Interested persons can get familiar with a
full version of studies carried out by CSRDG
experts, available on our we-site www.csrdg.ge.

All the studies conducted in 2013 provide
specific conclusions and recommendations.
Implementing action on the above issues was
through campaigns, holding public discussions
and seminars about the issues, the develop-
ment of recommendations and submission to
the appropriate State agencies and stimulating
wide coverage of the issues in the media.
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Projects implemented in 2013

Promoting Civil Society Engagement in
Food Safety Reform in Georgia (2012-2014)
/Eurasia Partnership Foundation/

Be Aware of the Safe Products (2012-2013)
/Open Society Foundation — Georgia/

Transparent Local Government in Public

Service (2012-2013)
/USAID program “Democratic Governance

in Georgia”/

Three years program of the Center (2011 -
2013)
/Church Development Service (EED)/

Consumer has right to participate (2013-
2014)
/Open Society Foundation — Georgia/

Empowering Women for Change (2013-

2014)

/UN Development Program in frames of
UNDP Enhancing Gender Equality in Geor-
gia program/

Transparent Convergence to EU Policies
in Sanitary Issues: the case in Georgia and

Moldova (2013-2016)
/Eurasia Partnership Foundation/
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Rgbgomob Ggb3dmdmogzol bagsmgm Lsddgos

Lodobob@Mm;

bm&z9a00b m@Gmemgzomos badgm;

bogdggmdmddgom 39dsbo@omymao (3968 M

sggbabgoa.

DONORS AND PARTNERS

OXFAM - NOVIB;

Church Development Service - EED;
Friedrich Ebert Stiftung (FES);

USAID;

UN Development Program;

Delegation of the European Union to Geor-
gia;

European Neighborhood policy initiative;
MWH Consortium;

APRODEYV;

Open Society — Georgia Foundation;
Birmingham University;

United Nations Organization of Georgia;
Center for Change and Conflict Management
“Partners-Georgia’s

Civil Society Institute;

Caucasian Institute for Peace, Democracy
and Development;

Civil Development Association of Georgia
(Lagodekhi);

Union for Democratic Development of Geor-
gia (Ozurgeti);

Telavi bureau nof the Centre for Strategic Re-
searcha and Development of Georgia (Telavi);
Young Economists Association of Georgia;
Center for Training and Consultancy;
Association “ELKANA”;

United Nations Development Program
(UNDP);

DVV International;

International Centre for Conflict and Nego-
tiation;

Global Initiative in Psychiatry;

Caucasus Environmental NGO Network
(CENN);

British Council;

Eurasia Partnership Foundation (EPF);
Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the Czech Re-
public;

Norwegian Refugee Council;

Charity Humanitarian Centre Abkhazeti.
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2013 6erob 353me399980

@996 035m0 b5(305/0300333M0390mm-
30b 35630059385

122 30gmg @960
gobgommmo  ©9396@Momodsioal  Ggb-

©g6(30900  LogeMmggmmda  /m.30335d;
3.dogobns/

J3mbmdn ;35 s bmpnsenaymo 3mennGogs
3Em3y@o:

30bbgb 43 33ema30.

dmdb3smgdgemnars oemgd9380

3Em3y@o:

LyALsmolb doMomswo 3obmbo (LyMbacal
M9a3momgds 930m353d0Mdo);

LyEAbsmalb  3ogngbs  (byyMbocmolb  ga«-
moMgds g36m 303306dn).

2012 Bemab Bemoyco sbascnda.

CSRDG Publications in 2013

Government Decentralization/ Local gov-
ernment development

Bulletin N122

o Tendencies Of Fiscal Decentralization In
Georgia /O. Kikvadze; M. Dzagania/

Economics and Social policy

Brochure:

o Business Guideline

Consumers Rights

Brochure:

o Main Food Law (Regulation of Food Safety in
EU);

o Food Hygiene (Regulation of Food Safety in
EU).

Annual Report 2012.
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TRAININGS/CONSULTATIONS/SEMINARS

bsmgdm mMgs60ds30980bmgab s sbasmasbAHEymo 396@Mgdabogzal

For CYCs and CBOs
1 CSRDG Program Social Enterprises — Successful Exam- 21
(396&M0b 3Bmamads ples; Reform on territorial arrangement
of local governance.
begosmfo 3gBs6m3gmdal Bam-
358 g0mo dogomamgdo; s@aomm-
dM0go 3dommggmmdal GgMoGm-
Gommo Imbymdal Hggm@ds.
2 CDJ Funding Regional Conference on Community 40
0930l gobgomamgdals bogm- Development issues.
23dmM0bm gm@bsmo Mganmbsn®o 3mbggMgbos
@930l 35630856 930b bsz0mbgdby.)
3 Svaneti Turist Centre Public participation in local decision- 44

Lgebgomal GuHabdab (3968 M0 making.
LoBdmasmMgdal Rstmgs sanmm-
36030 3o@sby39@0mgdgdol domg-

b0l 36m(39Lbda.
4 CSRDG Program Planned Development and Changes in 88
(39680l 3maMsds LG reform

5030mmdM030 M30m3doMmmggmm-
b0l Mgxmmmdom oggadamo (33mo-

mgdgdo
5 CSRDG Program Business Planning 14
396& M0l 3Mmamsds 30bbgbob oggadas
6 CSRDG Program Civic Engagement and Community 69
(396& M0l 3Omamads Development
badmgomsgm Rsormmmds o
®930b gobgnmomgds
7 CSRDG Program Principles of Gender Equity 71
(39660l 3MmaMsds 3960960 0365LbmEHMals 36-
mb(3039d0
Sub-Total 347

Ly sdbbMgms Mommgbmds
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FOR NGOs, SCHOOLS, BUSINESSES

bLsdmasEmgdMngn MEa360d5(30930bmgab, bzmmgdabsmgal, 30969bnbogal

8 CSRDG Program
(39680l 3maMmsds

9 People in Need
553056780 gognmzggdsdo

10 Coalition for Independent Life
3OS0 (300 53MY) 30009590
3bm3Mgdabomgals

11 Kvinna Till Kvinna
33065 o 33060

12 Kvinna Till Kvinna
33060 o 33060

13 Open Society Foundation- Georgia
Bmbro “mos bLabmgsmmagds —
LogoMoggemm”

14 Open Society Foundation- Georgia
Bmboo “mos Lodmasomgds —
LogoGmnggemm”

15 European Initiative - Liberal
Academy
9360m3mo 0bo(3008035 — mad-
9dNE0 53509300

16 Women Initiative Support Group
Jomms 06030580390 3bos3-
g0 %3:9Bo

17 Kvinna Till Kvinna
33065 o 33060

18 Women Initiative Centre
Jomms 0bo(300803980b (396 M0

19 Arbeiter-Samariter-Bund of Georgia
3mds LadaMoGgmoms 303300
Logdemggmmdo

20 CSRDG Program
(39680l 3Gma@mads

Sub-Total
Ly LB gMS Mom©gbmds

GRAND TOTAL

Business Planning for Social Enterprises
30%bgbob  @oggadss  Lmgnsmyma
Lobo®Imgdabogob

Introduction to Social Entrepreneurship
bmEosmamo 3g6sm3gmdal sMbo
(3gbogsema 3uMbo)

Project Planning and Proposal Writing
36MmgJ@ob oggadzs s badmm-
99d&™ g3bs3baal by

Result oriented project planning and
reporting

dggadg mMngb@omgdamo 3Mmmgd-
&0l ogqadzs s sbasmndaqds
Public participation in local decision-
making

Ladmasmgdal 8mbsbomgmds swa-
ommdmngo gosbyzg@omgdgdal
domgdob 3Om(39Lbdo

Strategic Planning
LEM2GIB0Yo ©ogYaZ

Project Planning and designing
36mgd@ob meggadgs s bgmos

Project Management
36mgd@ob docmngs

Strategic Planning
beMedgaogmo @oggadze

Project Writing

36mgd@ob bgmos

Project Evaluation and Planning
36mgd@ob dgnobgds s og9adgs
Business Planning for Social Enterprises

30bbgbob oggadszs bmzosmyma
baBam3mgdabogals

Introduction to Social Entrepreneurship
bmosmamo 3g6sm3gmdal sMbo

(3gbogsema 3yMbo)

R33LEMIN)D XO3IAHN HOIMRIBMSD

DT T TN

15

36

18

36

44

17

17

38

21

20

16

137

421

768
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2013 6emob 0bs6bymn s63560dn Financial Report for 2013 / Auditort’s
Report 2013

1. 80636byMa damdstgmdab 3353635A0d9ds (m>m3a)
2013 6emob 1 05630056 2013 6emob 31 093933606 Bsmzemoo 3gmomonbsmznb

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ( IN GEL)
For the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013

03603330 ASSETS

dnd@nbstg 3J@n3z9d0 Current Assets

Bmao babbHgdo s dscmn 475811 221235 Cash and Cash Equivalents
03303>9bGgd0

Logomsbabaom 848 nggd0 - 21612 Tax Assets

a903bnmo 5356L5d0 9 384 940,3 Advance Payment

Ly B080bathg od@&nzgd0 485 196 242 847  Total Current Assets
afdgmgansba 39@ngzgd0 Long-term Assets
dofomswon badysmagdgdo 193 476 175 046 Fixed assets

Ly amdgmagomnsbo 4@ 0ggd0 193476 175046 Total long-term Assets

678 672 418 834 Total Assets

Lyyem 53d@nggdo

3363330 249896 411366 RESERVES
a0996560mgdgmo Imggds/bomsma 417498 1791 Accumulated gain/loss
30bmgdo©sb ©s 10 940 5676 Accounts Payable
3m3bobycgdowsb bscdmJdboema

3omR)oYmgdgdo

aosbabogmo bgmasbgda - - Salary Payables
Logowsbabsom gommgdamgds 338 - Tax Liabilities

byem B0dnbomg gomegdnmgdgda 11278 5676 Total Current Liabilities
Ly AgDgMzgdo o 678672 418834 Total Reserves and Liabilities
3>mEdegdgdo
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2. g babbAgdab ImdEmsmdab 5635603393 (ms&da)
2013 6emob 1 056350056 2013 bemob 31 053938600l Bsamzemom SgMmommobsamznb

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (GEL)
For the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013

6306R3 BITOXRN LOLLEHIBN 10195832 1031187 NET CASH FLOWS FROM
LOYBN6I6LM LOIINVEMBNRO6 FINANCING ACTIVITIES
6306R BIWIXRNA LObLAISN LO- 284 495 857 083 NET CASH FLOWS FROM
M336360M LOHI3NO6M3NROE6 OPERATING ACTIVITIES
®0653d0mM3mgd Dy ao(393mn 397 574 556 461 Cash Paid to Employees
»obbgdn
35690 3m3babymgdobsmgals s 180 228 147 642 Paid amounts for goods/ser-
dgdgbaemo bogmbmabogal asogdymo vices apply
gmoo bobbemgdo
d0g3Mma 6@ gd0 118 805 104938 Micro Grants Given
Lbgs 3MmaMmadamo batggda 13 500 1479 Other Operating Expenses
a90sbomo badgdmbsegmm 20 667 11655 Income Taxes Paid
30sbobooon
6306R5 BITOXRN LOLLEIBN NET CASH FLOWS FROM
LOYN63ILENBNM LOI3NOE6MINROE6 INVESTIG ACTIVITIES
dofomsn badmsmgdgdol dgdgbs 75, 238 2076 Purchase of Premises and
Equipment
396bos ImMab bbgsmdowsb domg- 4 621 6 740 Exchange Rate Loss

dgmo bs@smo

gYmseo bsbbAgda s dsmn g3gngs- 221235 55 947 Cash and Cash Equivalents
m396@gd0 Ls3bz3G0dm 3gMameals at the Beginning of Report-
©3bsByababsmgal ing Period




3. 399mbogsmoa/ bsmmo gymab Jgdmbzms (ms&@da)
2013 6emob 1 056300056 2013 bemob 31 09393860l Bsmzemom 3gMmommobsamznb

STATEMENT OF Cash Receipts ( In GEL)

For the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013

939b00b gob30memgdal bosggb@m
360 dbmggmombomngal

3596Mmb a5b30m061530lb 3MmMamods

936500l 0865836m3mmdob gmboo

005 Lybdmasmgds —bsgsMmgzgmm

96m3bgm ©gdmgMadogmo 0bbEod e

3L " ggmbgmo”

0dgMomn&o 53509305 Mmdaemobn

Jomms 0bo(3008 03980 dboMoadgga
X3VBYO

3dnds badaMoGgmms 3ogdotn
bogoGmggmman

L3gebgomal GuHabdab (3968 M0

Logofmggmmb 35630

33065 o 33060

3Mdmn(300 MY 3009dgmo (3bmgcgda-
Lomgals

50053056980 gognM39d530
35M@bomEgda — Ladomggmm

LogFmsdmmobm dommzal bob@gdgdo

138 954
203 109,36

423 481,58

76 373

56 981

1385

20539

8964

5310

20 440

6 428

17 100

15 059
1300

750
5789

9905

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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629184,56

40 620,71

151 412,17

1300

1 693,38

18 870

11277,18

24850

Church Development Service (EED)

Bread For The World

UNDP

Eurasia Partnership Foundation

Open Society Foundation — Georgia

NDI

LTD “Geo-cell”

Liberal Academy Tbilisi

Women Initiative Support Group

Arbeiter-Samariter-Bund of Georgia

Svaneti Tourism Center

Bank of Georgia

Kvinna Till Kvinna

Coalition for Independent Life

People in Need

Partners — Georgia

MSI
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Rgbgmal Mgbdmdmogzal Logmbm - 38 311,29  The Embassy of Czech Republic
geHoMob gdg&Eob gmbon - 29 295 Friedrich Ebert Stiftung (FES)
360896gmab badgm - 19 995 British Council
0bgomnn 653330, mxsbo, Lodmasomgds - 1493,82  Disable Child. Family, Society
0930l g5630056580b gmE@bama - 10 586,75 Community Development Journal
(CD))
3J&039%0b gogogom domgdamo dg- 850 - Income Generated From Sale of Assets
dmbagsmo
0bngo@msmn®o dgdmbomammdgda 813 1500 Contributions from Individuals
LadMm(396@&™m dgdmbagamo (gd3mbo@n) 4155 - Interest Income (Deposit)
Lbge 1846 1323,6  Other
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3.1 @mbmMg3abasb domgdymo gumswa bobbAgda (1 011 868 masma)
TOTAL INCOME FROM DONORS (1 011 868 GEL)

. UNDP - UN Development Program
3596mb 33630m36930b 3GmaMsds — 42%
(423 482 Gel)

BW - Bread For The World
3960 bmgmombsmngab-20%
(203109 Gel)

EED - Church Development Service
93maboab 35630036980l bLasgagb@m — 14%
(138954 Gel)

Eurasia Partnership Foundation
9365%00b 00565336:m3mmdab gmboon — 8%

(76 373Gel)

OSGF - Open Society Foundation - Georgia
Bmbo "m0s bydmasomgds
-bsgsMmggmm™ — 6% (56 981 Gel)

MSI - Management Systems International
LogAN5dmAabm FsGangab bobBgdgdo —1%
(9 905 Gel)

NDI - National Democratic Institute
96m369m gdmzMms§oymo abbGoga@o — 0% (1 385 Gel)

Women Initiative Support Group

LTD "Geo-cell'/ 33L "ggmbgema™ - — 2%
Jomas 0ba30380393a0b BbsFmsddgMma xanae — 1% (5310 Gel)

(20 539 Gel)

LAT - Liberal Academy Tbilisi

ASB - Arbeiter-Samariter-Bund of Georgia
m0d3gFmamufa 53509305 mdaemabo — 2% ( 8 964 Gel)

3935 bsdsMmaggmms 3s3don
bagsGmagemmda — 2% (20 440 Gel)
Coalition for Independent Life

3M3mn(305 33M3nEgdgmo 3bmzMgdabsmzgal — 0% (1300 Gel) BG- Bank of Georgia / bajosGoggemmb 85630 —
2% (17 100 Gel)

People in Need/ 50053056930 3306398530 — 0% ( 750 Gel)
Kvinna Till Kvinna / 33065 §oem 33065 — 1%

Svaneti Tourism Center 15059 Gel)

L3gs6gmab §Mab3ab (396@Ma — 1 % (6 428 Gel)

Partners - Georgia
3568bomAgdo — bads@aggmm — 1% (5789
Gel) - 1%

« 36330330 63b3>@ gdmgmagdsms 3563:A§9ds/Abbreviations used:
EED - Church Development Service/ g3mgbool gobgomatigdal bosggb@m — 138 954
UNDP - UN Development Program/ gog®mb gobgomatgdol 3Gmamads — 423 482
BW - Bread For The World/ 3960 3bmgmombamgal — 203 109
OSGF - Open Society Foundation — Georgia /@mboo “m0s babmgasmgds —bsdsmmggmm” — 56 981
MSI - Management Systems International/bsg@msdm@abm dotmgol bob@gdgdo 9 905
Eurasia Partnership Foundation/ g36sb0ols :865336m8mmdal gmbeon- 76 373
LTD “Geo-cell’/ 33L ”ggmbgema” — 20 539
ASB - Arbeiter-Samariter-Bund of Georgia/ 34jds bodsGo@gmoms 3ogdoma bodstimggmmdo — 20 440
BG- Bank of Georgia/ bogofmggmmb ds630 — 17 100
Kvinna Till Kvinna / 33065 8o 3306 — 15 059
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Partners — Georgia/ 35686omtMgda — bsjstmggmm — 5 789

NDI - National Democratic Institute/ gmgbgm ©gdmzmagoqmo abb@odm@o — 1 385
Women Initiative Support Group/ doemms 0ba(309803980b 3bsmmsddgmn gamao —5 310
LAT - Liberal Academy Tbilisi/ modg®smado 83909808 mdomabo — 8 964

Coalition for Independent Life/ 3mamo308 @88m9y3009dgmo (3bmz@mgdobsmgol — 1300
People in Need/ 5058006980 gogotggdsdo - 750

Svaneti Tourism Center/ bzsbgmob &mEab3ob (396& 0 — 6 428

3.2 336g9mo byMgabgdoa (§Fg606398005 s 3MbLymEGs(309300) Jomgdama 5dmbsgsma
Income from services provided (trainings and consultations)

3L "ggmbgmo” 20 538,84
LTD “Geo-cell”

Lgobgmal GNEabab (396@ 0 6 427,92
Svaneti Tourism Center

Jomms 0603008 03980b IboMsdFgho Kxampo 3960
Women Initiative Support Group

Jomms 0bo(309803980b (396 M0 1350
Women Initiative Centre

393s badaMo@gmms 3ogdafn bogsmggmmda 20 440
Arbeiter-Samariter-Bund of Georgia

553056980 gogntiggdsdo 750
People in Need

LogoGmggmmb 65630 17 100
Bank of Georgia

3000 (300 MY 300gdgmo (3bmzMgdabomgals 1300
Coalition for Independent Life

33060 o 33060 15 058,73
Kvinna Till Kvinna

3oMBbomMgda — bogomggmm 5789
Partners — Georgia

960m369m gdmzMa@onmo abbEodndon 1385
NDI

m0dgMomn®o 53509305 Mmdaemabo 1 688,03
Liberal Academy Thbilisi
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4. bstign/bsmoa gamab gobgms
2013 6emob 1 0563056 2013 6emob 31 093938606 Bsmzemoo 3gmomonbsmznb

Statement of Cash Disbursement
For the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013

OR3INBNOLEMIGNITN 122 721 117,627  ADMINISTRATION COSTS
bdMX IS0
36maM3dyemo bsMggdo 622093 711,290  Program costs
1. bsdmgdsmagm bsdmasmgdab 311711 363,224 1. Empowerment of
L@ AHsns 35dmagFmgds Civil Society
3Mma 3ol 3mmEmEabomgdal bom- 140 706 137,220  Program coordination (Personnel, Equ
%900 (396Lmbsmo, segnMzommds, ipment, Transportation,program  related
BHobL3MMGaMmgds, 3Mmamadsbmsb costs)
©5 35330690 bofggdn)
®930b gobzomamgdal Ggba@bL (396- 113 132 93,813  Activities with Community Develop-
&Ml Igdomds (&gdogmmo dbsMosd- ment Resource Centre (technical sup-
963, 3mbo@mMoban s dggzabgds, port; monitoring&evaluation; information
0bxzm@3o(300b gos(3939, 3933060) sharing;networking)
LodmasmgdMngo mMasbabs(z0gd0b 57 873 132,191  Activities on informational, technical and
0bgzm&m3s30mo, &gd6039Ma o financial assistance for CSOs (SE promo-
$0bsbLbyma dbsMmadgms(bmznsmya tion, small financial support, advanced
89656M8gmdab gobgomsmgds, dozmm- trainings)
a65b6@q60, &Mgbnbagdn)
2. 33630 3dsGanggemmdalb 271 684 203,418 2. Promoting Good Governance
bgm3dgbymads
3Mma©dolb 3mmEabomgdals bom- 115185 79,661 Program coordination (Personnel, Equ
%900 (396Lmbomo, smgnMzommds, ipment, Transportation,program  related
BMobL3MMEGaMmgds, 3Mmamadslmsb costs)
53539069340 bofggda)
5030mmdMog0 3dommnggemmdals gobgo- 54 989 28,004 The Local Government Development
@M gdo
96m36mm pmbydg osmmaal 101 510 95,753 Policy Dialogue at National level
BomBommgo
3. gmE@3mEAs3ogemo bmgosmayo 38 698 144,648 3. Promoting Development of Corporate
35byybabdggdmmdab 33630036930l Social Responsibility
bgmdgbymds
3MHmaMs30b 3mmMEabomgdol bom- 19 097 52,166  Program coordination (Personnel, Equipm
%900 (39MLmbamo, sognMgommds, ent,Transportation,program related costs)

BEobL3MMGnMgds, 3MmaMmsadsbmsb
0535380698mm0 botxgd0)

S0 8233 5,448 Audit
c9dgez0 16 531 11,007  Reserve
d39%530 2 24764 16,455  Subtotal 2
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©Bm30@YBI sEoGmGNS ©sLIEEs

bagadmggermb bGadgaogee 33e0agbols @2 pbgomshigbol gaBiHob beddngsbembsl
Figab Bagaghsgon bagsBorggerml biGadponmo 33egagdols @ 33B30m3Ggdols ggbiHol
(mhpsBoBagos) gobsblmmo sbasdaBagdol svodo, Gmdgemog Bmogagh babagnsblm viiyoll 2013
fiemobs 31 398860l damdsmymbdoom, sbggg Bryema@o LsblMgbol domadobis s batgols
ABpamiodagbel @s gremaeo Bagswgdol Bmdmamdol s6asmodygbal 08 furobsmgol, Gmdymog
@abifregs Bmigdnyemo msmogom, sbiggy Bglisbsdol basmMogbgm dmemodogals @s sbliba-
2368698 0m Bgbodgbgbl. dmpndmeno gobsblmmo sBasmodagbs BmdBamgdymenos mepsbobsgool

bymddmgsbaemmmbol Boge gobsblmmo sBasmobagbol 8gBodgbaddo gebdsmBgdmmo dmmogojol
(B98cpmddo LasBogbgm dmeodogs) Tgbsdadoba.

G969x 8BS0l 3sbibolidagbereds 3obblio sbgsGodagbsy

bynddpgabyambds 3almbodagdyaros gobablny®o sbpamodagdol mdbspydsls @s Bob bsdstomeosb
fatoggBaby basaMogbzm 3memodngolb Bobyrgom, Amdgerog obawgbos Bnggdme Lodusgosdo
gobsBlmio sBastobagdol dm8Bspgdobomgal, sbggg obgomo Bos JmBGGmmols boliggdol Ggobalis
@3 298mygBgdaty, dminemog mGsEobagool bymddagsbymmdol Gfidgbom, «wbenmbagmymal oligmo
gobublvmo sbasmabagdol BmBbapgbal, Gmigmog o6 Bgogsgb maaeommdol 36 Bgawmdol
Aape FamimBmbdog sGlgbom Byaomdgdl.

sgadatos bgbobdsgbarmbgéo

RBggbl dsbmboliBagdermdsdo Byoob, gsdmgmdasm dmbsbmgds gobsbln® sBastadandsty Rgnbl dogh
Ragdaighemo svyodol badrsmgbom. sry@odl famglshomagopom sm@odol bygmadnGobm
Liabostndol Bgbabsdobs. bhsbosd®gbo dmombmgl sv@odol Bagsmgbal gmogob Brm@dgdol
wozsemobfobgdom, sbggg srwodol oBagsms© @apnadgols @s Ra@amgdal, Hmd Bogoamom
@sbsdmmgbemeno gatabios odols, Bgogagh mv 565 subodbmmo gobsblnmmo sbasmobygbs seligbom
blimdgdl.

apodo omgsenolifobgdl 3hmggonmgdol baggmdggmbyg 8¢ 30a08maybabols Bm3mgabsb gobablvm®
SBgsmodanbedo dmgndama mabbgbols s oBam®asgool Esaligmmgdol BobBom. By@Pgmamo
3BmErEwegdo guedbgds smodm@ol duxgmmbsl, Hmdgmmog dmogagh gobsblin® sBasmodanbado
owpeonmdol 36 Bygomdol 3gogaso aednfzgmmo mbmbdmbgdol Molizol ymebgdsl. sebodbmeo
Mol 3gbob Ggmaligdolisl smy@ogmmo gebobomagh measbobagool Bos JmbGHmenal bobdgasl,
Hmdgenog Bgbababolios gobablr®o sBasmabaghol 8mdBacogbabs @ badsfmeroab Famoggbabioab.
>80l Lagymdggeby smEodmmo 3)adgl Ggbsdsdol seodmnma 3Hmagormbl, BspMad 56
208mbahagh megol dmbabegdsl measBobagaol Bos JmbEfmaol bolihgdols gagddnmmdol
Bqlisbgd. smoo®o spmgmay pryenabbimdl gobsblmmo s6asmHodagdol Gmdbaogbolsl
bemddmgsbyamdols Bog® gedmynBabueo dugmsmdiemo sa®ogbgol 3Gobandgdols s
d60836gemmgsbo bryosardmeno Bgaaligdgdol bobfimeol Byaabigbal, spdgmag mobsblmmo
sBemobagbob famopgbol Bggabgdab.

33RO, Bmd Bggbl 8oy demdemggdryero sieodmGneo 8¢oadnwwddo @bdrmdye
Usgdgoeel a3sdergal @aliggbol sbaggdse.

@3li3365

Bggbo sB@oo, famdmoagbowmo gobsblm®o sBasmodagds miymse ©s badsmomosbam sbsbagl
LagdsBoggmab biE®sdgaommo 33wmoggdolis s gebgomsmgbol gobdHmol gobsBlvm® BopmBsmgmdsb
2013 femob 31 nanddGobamgol, sbiggg dolio eymemagon babliMmgdol Gomgbobis @ bafygol
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Management of Center of Strategic Researches and Development of Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Center of Strategic Researches
and Development of Georgia (Organization), which comprises statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2013 and the statement of cash receipts and disbursements and cash flow
statement for the year then ended, also a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. The financial statement has been prepared by management according
to the policy disclosed in the notes to the financial statements (further Accounting Policy).

Management’s responsibility for the Financial Statement

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial
statements in accordance with the Accounting Policy, which is an acceptable basis for the
preparation of the financial statements under the circumstances, and for the such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
statements that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Organization's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the statement
of financial position of Center of Strategic Researches and Development of Georgia as of 31
December 2013, and of its statement of cash receipts and disbursements and cash flow
;ﬁtemegi furzhjﬁyzr then ended, in accordance with the Organization Accounting Policy.
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